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editorial

from the pen...

Chris Kennedy is a generative change agent, strategic business and life 
coach, transformation consultant and facilitator with seventeen years 
experience.  She has facilitated change in many leading organisations, 
including KPMG where she assisted with the merger between KMMT 
and KPMG.  Currently she is working with the SABC3 on her project 
Phenomenal Women, designed to provide tools for successful women.  
She consults to SAICA through Enigma HR Consulting.  

this month’s contributors...

A few weeks ago I attended a presentation 
by JP Landman, a self-employed political and 
trend analyst, Harvard graduate, and author of 
the article “Is the bad mood justified?”. 

Landman introduced his presentation with 
a story about a South African hedge fund 
manager he knew, who had taken a four-
month diving vacation in January this year, and 
by the time she returned in April, the mood in 
the country had changed completely. 

He went on to say that the Eskom crisis, the 
Zimbabwe elections and the conflict there, 
coupled with the global turbulence around the 
three Big Fs – Finance, Food and Fuel - had hit 
many South African’s in the gut. 

So what Landman decided to do through his 
article, mentioned earlier, and together with 
the presentation, was to deliver the good news 
- with a careful analysis of trends. 

What his research boiled down to was that 
there are four tipping points that create a 
successful nation with economic growth. 
Obviously, a nation must keep getting richer, 
and it has to develop strong social capital, 
which is the cohesion of a nation where all are  
working towards a common goal. 

Landman’s four tipping points were:

•	 keeping	the	economy	growing	at	4,5%	and	
getting	50%	of	people	into	jobs;	

•	 recreating	social	capital	by	consciously	
building values, common good and a sense 
of	society;	

•	 developing	stronger	institutions;	and	

•	 enforcing	rules	and	norms	of	behaviour.	

He pointed out that the South African economy 
is growing, despite what doomsayers predict. 
Economists are now agreeing that growth will 
be	between	3%	and	4%	(albeit	5%	in	previous	
years).	He	also	showed	that	in	the	14	years	
since democracy, per capita incomes have 
increased	by	26%.	With	the	growth	rate	at	
4%	in	the	next	seven	years,	he	added	that	per	
capita	incomes	can	again	increase	by	26%.	
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Now while Landman’s research definitely spiked 
huge interest and optimism amongst those at 
the presentation, my concern, and I guess, our 
collective challenge is definitely guided by the 2nd, 
3rd	and	4th	tipping	points	earlier	identified	by	
Landman. 

‘Social capital’, which talks directly to a communal 
sense	of	value	(which	means	a	drastic	reduction	
in crime statistics and has a causal link to poverty, 
which is a key area of challenge that we have yet 
to tackle with complete force or even cohesion 
within economic or political terms), ‘stronger 
institutions’, which is directly linked to accountable 
and	transparent	processes	(which	talks	to	
corruption and fraud within state departments), 
and ‘enforcing rules and norms of behaviour’, 
which talks directly to justice and equality under 
the law and the constitution. 

How do we quantify real change within these 
tipping points? And how do we ensure that they 
have a positive impact on economic growth and 
sustainability? 

Do we look at policy change, moral regeneration 
projects such as the Heartlines campaign? Do we 
consider the transformation imperatives adopted 
by professional bodies? Do we quantify real change 
in terms of the growth of B-bBEE deals? 

Just how do we begin to quantify what change is? 
Is the work done by the Human Rights Commission 
around its objective of poverty alleviation a 
quantifiable measure? Are the Bill of Rights and 
its declaration of access to housing, health care, 
and education quantifiable measures? Are the 
transformation charters adopted by professional 
bodies quantifiable measures? 

Just how do we quantify real change within 
these areas so that we are ensured of building a 
successful nation for all sectors of our society? 

I’m not sure of the definitive answer to this. But 
what I do know is that, when a chameleon, for 
instance,	changes	its	colour	(for	whatever	reason),	
the science experts agree that the quantifiable 
measure of its success lies in its survival.

Raina
Editor

The change issue
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ore than 70% of chartered 
accountants	[CAs(SA)]	registered	
with the South African Institute 

of	Chartered	Accountants	(SAICA)	practise	
in commerce and industry – the largest 
constituency of SAICA’s total membership.

With the aim of addressing the constituency’s 
needs, SAICA recently hosted the inaugural 
SAICA Captains of Industry Gala Dinner and 
official launch of the Leadership Forum for its 
members in commerce and industry.

The event ushered in a new era where the 
commerce and industry constituency name 
was changed to Members in Business	(MIB)	
in line with international trends. It also 
signaled SAICA’s intentions to broaden the 
scope of its services to include the public 
sector, state owned enterprises and academia.

At the event, the Leadership Forum was 
chaired by Roy Andersen, Chairman of Sanlam. 
In his address Andersen urged business and 
government to work together with SAICA in 
the interest of a better South Africa. 

He went on to say that although national 
initiatives such as the Big Business Working 
Group and Business Leadership South 
Africa have been established, there is still 
scope for chartered accountants who are 
captains of industry to do more. Andersen 
emphasised the need for job creation and 
skills development. He then briefly described 
the progress being made in the three areas 
where he is personally involved: 

• Business Against Crime

• The Business Trust 

• The Reserves of the South African National 
Defense Force. 

Speaking at the launch, Jan Labuschagne, 
CEO of Sappi Southern Africa and Chairman 
of the MIB Committee at SAICA said, “An 
integral part of the MIB Committee’s strategy 
is to develop a value proposition for MIB in 
the various industry sectors they operate in”.  

Labuschagne further stated that the main 
objective of the event was to create a forum 
that will continue to serve as a platform 
for interaction with key decision makers in 
business, as well as the public sector, so as 
to identify and facilitate the discussion and 
possible resolution of issues of mutual interest.  

Kelly Masete, SAICA’s Project Director - MIB, 
stated that globalisation, and information 
and communication technology have brought 
with it a need for a new body of knowledge 
skills and that modern business has adapted 
to function in a fast paced, complex, dynamic 
and demanding environment. All these 
developments, he said, were not without 
inherent risks.

Masete stressed that recent international 
corporate collapses and scandals have 
created a heightened awareness and need for 
the improvement of corporate governance, 
ethical and moral leadership – areas that 
SAICA has not focused on as part of its 
traditional service offering of accounting, 
auditing and taxation issues.

“The chartered accountant of the future has 
to be more than an accountant. Extending 
SAICAs service offering to include corporate 
governance, ethics and sustainability should 
assist in SAICA providing a more relevant and 
focused service to its predominant member 
grouping. SAICAs vision is to develop leaders 
and with this in mind the main challenge is 
to move from accountant to value-added 
business advisor, and develop professionals 
for a changing world.”

A core mission of the SAICA Leadership 
Forum, explains Masete, is to facilitate 
an effective dialogue with business and 
government. “Our vision is to be recognised 
in South Africa’s business community as 
the leading independent forum for sharing 
innovative thinking, best practices, and tools 
in strategic management and leadership.”

For more information please contact:

Thando Pato 
Corporate Communications Co-ordinator 
The SA Institute of Chartered Accountants 
Tel:	(011)	621	6898 
Email: thandop@saica.co.za

Kelly Masete 
Project Director: Members in Business 
The SA Institute of Chartered Accountants 
Tel:	(011)	621	6740 
Email: kellym@saica.co.za 
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AICA and its education committee (EDCO), after 
consulting with its various stakeholders and after careful 
deliberation, have decided to change the timing of the  

Part	1	of	the	Qualifying	Examination	(QE).

As from 2010, the exams will be written at the end of January with 
the results being released in April each year. The QE1 exam is currently 
written in March with the exam results being released on the last 
Friday	of	June	of	each	year.	The	current	timing	will	apply	in	2009.	

The QE1 is a standard setting examination which assesses the 
core	technical	competence	of	prospective	CAs(SA)	at	a	benchmark	
considered appropriate by SAICA. It is important that this examination 
is set independent of the universities as the examination results 
are one of the measures used by SAICA in its process of accrediting 
programmes	that	lead	to	the	qualification	of	CAs(SA)	at	universities.

The	reason	for	changing	the	timing	is	because	QE1	(being	part	of	the	
overall learning process towards the qualification of CAs(SA) is currently 
considered to be too long after the current Certificate in the Theory of 
Accounting	(CTA)	exams,	which	is	written	in	October/November	each	
year. SAICA considers the time gap between the CTA exams and QE1 
to be too long because trainees who start their training contracts in 
January are often required to work significant hours in this period, 
thereby neglecting their studies until they go on study leave. At this 
point many QE candidates report that they need to go back and “re-
learn” many aspects of the material. In addition this period of study 
leave is seen by many firms as being disruptive to their work schedules.

SAICA therefore embarked on a project during which it consulted 
its many stakeholders’ views and also looked at the educational 
rationale behind the QE1 and timing of the exam in order to find a 
more appropriate time to schedule the QE1. The most appropriate 
time was considered to be a time long enough after the CTA exams in 
November but also within a reasonable time so that whatever knowledge 
prospective	CAs(SA)	retained	for	the	CTA	exam	was	not	“lost”.	Indeed,	
it is critical that some time is given in the learning process to reflect 
on and consolidate this knowledge. The QE1 exam is considered to be 
part of the continuous learning process. We believe that some period of 
consolidation and reflection is therefore required prior to the writing  
of QE1.

The outcome of this project was that the end of January was found 
to be the most appropriate time for the QE1 given the role it plays 
in the qualification process. Although a December exam was mooted 
it was not considered to be a viable alternative particularly because 
of the logistical difficulties the bigger universities would face in 
submitting exam results to SAICA at a much earlier date in order to 
accommodate this earlier exam date.

SAICA and EDCO maintain that the new timing will be advantageous 
for all stakeholders:

• Training offices will have the choice of either starting their training 
contracts on January 1st or after the exam has been written. It is 
expected that even if firms start the training contract on 1 January, 
candidates will be given immediate study leave so that they will be 
able to focus on their studies without having to worry about work 
stress. This would equate to the study leave currently being given 
by training offices.

• Exam candidates will have a short, uninterrupted time in which to 
reflect on and consolidate their knowledge in preparation for the QE1 
at the same time affording them a short break after their CTA exams. 

For more information on the change in the timing of the QE1  
exam visit www.saica.co.za or email Mandi Olivier on  
mandio@saica.co.za. 

Nazeer Wadee CA(SA) is Chief Operating Officer, SAICA.

S

QE1
[  saica news  ]
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INTERPRETATIONS 
AGREEMENTS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF REAL ESTATE
The	IFRIC	has	issued	IFRIC	15	–	Agreements for the Construction of 
Real Estate. The Interpretation will standardise accounting practice 
across jurisdictions for the recognition of revenue among real estate 
developers for sales of units, such as apartments or houses, ‘off-plan’, 
i.e. before construction is complete. 
The Interpretation provides guidance on how to determine whether 
an agreement for the construction of real estate is within the scope of 
IAS	11(AC	109)	–	Construction Contracts,	or	IAS	18(AC	111)	–	Revenue, 
and when revenue from the construction should be recognised. The 
main expected change in practice is a shift for some entities from 
recognising	revenue	using	the	percentage	of	completion	method	(i.e.	
as construction progresses, by reference to the stage of completion 
of	the	development)	to	recognising	revenue	at	a	single	time	(i.e.	at	
completion upon or after delivery). Agreements that will be affected will 
be	mainly	those	currently	accounted	for	in	accordance	with	IAS	11(AC	
109)	–	Construction Contracts, that do not meet the definition of a 
construction contract as interpreted by the IFRIC and do not transfer to 
the buyer control and the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the work in progress in its current state as construction progresses.
IFRIC	15	applies	to	the	accounting	for	revenue	and	associated	
expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate 
directly, or through subcontractors.  The interpretation is effective 
for	annual	periods	beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2009	and	is	to	be	
applied retrospectively.
This	interpretation	was	approved	by	the	APB	in	August	2008	and	
issued as an Interpretation of Statements of GAAP. The Interpretation 
is available online in the SAICA Handbook.

HEDGES OF A NET INVESTMENT IN A FOREIGN 
OPERATION
The IFRIC has issued IFRIC 16 – Hedges of a Net Investment in a 
Foreign Operation. The IFRIC was asked for guidance on accounting 
for the hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation in an entity’s 
consolidated financial statements. Practice has diverged as a result 
of differing views on which risks are eligible for hedge accounting 
according	to	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(IFRSs).
IFRIC 16 clarifies the following three main issues: 
1. Whether risk arises from the foreign currency exposure to the 

functional currencies of the foreign operation and the parent 
entity, or from the foreign currency exposure to the functional 
currency of the foreign operation and the presentation currency of 
the parent entity’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 16 concludes that the presentation currency does not create 
an exposure to which an entity may apply hedge accounting. 

Consequently, a parent entity may designate as a hedged risk only 
the foreign exchange differences arising from a difference between 
its own functional currency and that of its foreign operation.

2. Which entity within a group can hold a hedging instrument in a 
hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation and, in particular, 
whether the parent entity holding the net investment in a foreign 
operation must also hold the hedging instrument.

IFRIC 16 concludes that the hedging instrument(s) may be held by 
any entity or entities within the group.

3. How an entity should determine the amounts to be reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss for both the hedging instrument and 
the hedged item when the entity disposes of the investment.

IFRIC 16 concludes that while IAS 39(AC 133) - Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement, must be applied to determine the 
amount that needs to be reclassified to profit or loss from the foreign 
currency translation reserve in respect of the hedging instrument, IAS 
21(AC 112) - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, must 
be applied in respect of the hedged item.

This	interpretation	was	approved	by	the	APB	in	August	2008	and	
issued as an Interpretation of Statements of GAAP, and is available on 
the SAICA Handbook-on-line.

REVIEW OF THE CONSTUTITION
The Trustees of the International Accounting Standards Committee 
(IASC)	Foundation	have	published	a	discussion	document,	Review of 
the Constitution: Public Accountability and the Composition of the 
IASB - Proposals for Change. The Accounting Practices Committee has 
issued	this	as	Exposure	Draft	242.
The document contains proposals that are dealt with in the first 
phase of the organisation’s five-yearly Constitution Review. The public 
comment	deadline	on	the	document	is	20	September	2008.
The proposals would:
• establish a formal link between the organisation and a Monitoring 

Group comprising representatives of public authorities and 
international organisations that have requirements for 
accountability	to	public	authorities;	and
• expand the membership of the International Accounting Standards 
Board	(IASB)	to	16	members	and	add	new	guidelines	regarding	the	
geographical diversity of the members of the IASB.

The establishment of the link to a Monitoring Group, a group 
established by public authorities outside the IASC Foundation’s 
organisational framework, is aimed at enhancing the transparency 
and public accountability of the IASC Foundation, while not impairing 
the independence of the standard-setting process. The document is 
available on the SAICA Website. 

ACCOUNTING

AUDITING
FURTHER PROGRESS ON CLARITY 
STANDARDS

The International Auditing and Assurance 
Standards	Board	(IAASB)	has	released	
International	Standard	on	Auditing	(ISAs)	550	
(Revised	and	Redrafted)	–	Related Parties and 
three clarity redrafted ISAs.

The involvement of related parties in major 
corporate scandals encouraged the IAASB to 
revise its current auditing standard on the 
subject. The revised Related Parties standard 
clarifies the meaning of ‘related party’ for 

purposes of an audit. It also makes clear the 
auditor’s responsibility to obtain sufficient 
evidence about the required accounting and 
disclosure of related party relationships and 
transactions and to understand how such 
relationships and transactions affect the view 
given by the financial statements.

The standard will strengthen current auditing 
practice in this area by emphasising the need 
for the auditor to understand related party 
relationships and transactions in order to 
identify the risks of material misstatement to 
which these may give rise and directing the 

auditor to focus work effort on the assessed 
risks of material misstatement, including 
those due to fraud. 

The revised standard clarifies the auditor’s 
responsibilities in those cases where the 
financial reporting framework establishes 
minimal or no related party requirements. 
In addition, it provides enhanced guidance 
to assist the auditor in understanding 
and responding to the risks of material 
misstatement that may arise in relation to 
related parties with dominant influence.

[  technical  ]
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In	addition	to	ISA	550	(Revised	and	
Redrafted), the IAASB has also released the 
following clarity redrafted ISAs:

•	 ISA	250	(Redrafted)	–	Consideration 
of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of 
Financial Statements

•	 ISA	510	(Redrafted)	–	Initial Audit 
Engagements - Opening Balances 

•	 ISA	570	(Redrafted)	–	Going Concern

To	date,	15	final	clarity	redrafted	ISAs	have	
been released by the IAASB, which form part 
of its 18 month program to redraft existing 
standards following the clarity drafting 
conventions. 

The will be effective for audits of financial 
statements for periods beginning on or after 
15	December	2009	and	can	be	downloaded	
from the IFAC online bookstore. 

IAASB STRATEGY AND WORK 
PROGRAM (2009-2011)

The IAASB has released its Strategy and Work 
Program, 2009-2011. The three-year strategy 
includes an emphasis on the development 
of standards that contribute to the effective 
operation of the world’s capital markets that 
address the needs of small and medium-sized 
entities and small and medium practices. 

The Strategy and Work Program builds on the 
strong base of standards developed by the 
IAASB to date and focuses on the following 
three areas:

• The development of standards.

• The facilitation and monitoring of adoption 
of those standards.

• Responding to concerns about the 
implementation of the standards by activities 
designed to improve the consistency with 
which they are applied in practice.

The IAASB’s vision is that the high quality 
standards on assurance, related services 
and, in particular, ISAs are developed in the 
public interest and are adopted and applied 
internationally. The strategy and work 
programme is consistent with this longer 
term vision.

It responds to significant developments in 
the environment in which audit and other 
assurance services are performed, and in 
which standards for such services are set. It 
also highlights the IAASB’s role in working 
towards global acceptance of and convergence 
with its standards, and in establishing and 
maintaining relevant partnerships. It is 
underpinned by the IAASB’s communication 
initiatives to keep stakeholders informed of 
its activities and to promote adoption and 
implementation of its standards.

It also reflects the outcome of an extensive 
consultation programme to obtain the 
widest possible input into determining the 
IAASB’s priorities over the next three years. 
A summary of the IAASB’s conclusions with 
regard to significant matters raised during 
these consultations is presented in the Basis for 
Conclusions: IAASB Strategy and Work Program, 
2009-2011. The Strategy and Work Program, 
2009-2011 can be obtained from the IFAC 
online bookstore. To access the related Basis 
for Conclusions and other information on 
the IAASB’s work, visit the IAASB website on 
www.iaasb.org. 

IRBA & ITS FUNCTIONS

The world is a dangerous place, not because of those who do evil, but because of 
those who look on and do nothing. Albert Einstein

Much reference is made to the IRBA and its functions. The IRBA was established to act as an 
oversight and regulatory body over the attest function in the public interest. 

The IRBA accredits professional bodies against defined criteria. This accreditation allows 
individuals that have gone through the qualification process of the professional body to act 
as	Registered	Auditors	(RAs).	The	attest	function	performed	by	an	RA	is	then	regulated	by	
the IRBA. It is not the intention of the Board to regulate tax practices in the same manner. It 
is the intention of the Board to prescribe minimum education standards, a code of conduct 
and sound investigative and disciplinary processes. These functions are accredited as being 
adequately managed by various professional bodies. The IRBA places reliance on a professional 
body delivering competent, qualified practitioners as a proactive measure in ensuring the 
continued quality of the audit profession.

A number of specific comments were made on the Bill. The most significant being changes that 
will ensure that SAICA members, who are practitioners, are treated the same as those registered 
with the IRBA or the provincial law societies. A copy of SAICA’s submission is available and can 
be accessed on the SAICA website, www.saica.co.za. 

PUBLIC SECTOR
2007/8 AUDITING OF PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION APPROACH

Are	you	aware	of	the	2007/8	auditing	of	
performance information approach? It is 
contained	in	the	2008	Auditor-General	
directive published in General Notice 616 
of	2008,	issued	in	Government	Gazette	No.	
31057	of	15	May	2008.

THE APPROACH

To be applied in all public sector entities, by 
audits done by Auditor-General or Registered 
firms, which require the following steps:

Step 1 Internal controls and systems

Understanding of the internal controls 
and systems relevant to collect, monitor 
and report performance information and 
documenting system descriptions. The 
controls and systems should be verified by 
means of walkthrough tests.

Step 2 Evaluate

Evaluate quality of performance information 
reported in annual report for:

a. Existence and quality of:

•	 measurable	objectives;

•	 indicators;

•	 targets;

•	 actual	performance;	and

• reasons for deviations.

b. Consistency of predetermined objectives 
between strategic plan, annual 
performance plan, budget, quarterly 
reports and annual report.

c. Format and presentation in annual report.

Step 3 Comparison

Compare reported performance information 
to relevant source documentation and 
conducting limited substantive procedures 
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The following are the most significant changes – as highlighted in the 
newsletter accompanying the revised Draft Bill:

•	 The	requirement	that	tax	practitioners	(practitioners)	that	are	
under the statutory regulation of another relevant statutory body 
(e.g.	the	Independent	Regulatory	Board	for	Auditors	(IRBA)	or	
any Law Society etc.) will only be subject to the disciplinary or 
other procedures of that other statutory body. However, these tax 
practitioners will still be required to register with the Independent 
Regulatory	Board	for	Tax	Practitioners	(the	Board).

• The softening of the harsh penalties for errant practitioners. No 
criminal sanction will now be taken. Errant practitioners can be 
struck off the practitioners’ roll or be suspended for a period. Those 

to ensure valid, accurate and complete 
reporting on performance information.

Step 4 Reporting

The results of audit work done on 
performance information should not have 
an impact on the audit opinion. However, 
the following aspects, if they exist, should 
be reported under “other reporting 
responsibilities” heading in the audit report:

• Non-compliance with Public Finance 
Management	Act	(PFMA)	reporting	
requirements.

• Material difference between measurable 
objectives in annual report and strategic plans.

• No measurable objectives in strategic 
plans, while measurable objectives 
included in annual report.
• Reported information is materially 

inconsistent when compared to the 
evidence provided.
• Performance information was not received 

in time to be evaluated at year-end.

SUBMISSION 

External auditors should have received 
the performance information on or before 
31	May	2008,	as	communicated	in	the	
engagement letter.

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

The audit approach, audit programmes, 
procedures and related working papers to 
be used for the auditing of performance 
information	for	the	2007/08	PFMA	cycle	can	
be found on SAICA’s website, www.saica.co.za. 
Chapter 2 of the National Treasury’s annual 
report	preparation	guide	2007-08	details	
the reporting requirements for performance 
information. This guide can be accessed on 
the website for the Office of the Accountant-
General, www.oag.gov.za.

THE WAY FORWARD

In the absence of an auditing standard, the 
Auditor-General initiated a phased approach 
in	2005/6	to	comply	with	Public	Audit	Act	

–	section	20(2)(c).	The	requirement	of	this	
audit report is to reflect at least an opinion 
or conclusion on the reported information 
relating to the performance of the auditee 
against predetermined objectives.

The intention of this phased approach will 
be	completed	by	2009/10,	at	a	time	when	
appropriate standards would have been 
developed, with a view to issuing an audit 
opinion/conclusion	in	2009/10.

Have	you	informed	the	Auditor-General	(AG)	
if appointed directly by auditee to perform 
an audit?

The AG has initiated a process to collate 
information of all registered firms engaged to 
audit entities, which they opt not to audit in 
reference	to	the	Public	Audit	Act	(PAA).	PAA	
Section	25(1)	requires	an	auditee	(an	entity)	
where the AG has opted not to perform the 
audit, to notify the AG of the registered firm 
the auditee intends to appoint. Similarly, 
Section 26 requires the auditee to inform the 
AG in the event that it intends to discharge 
an auditor appointed in terms of section 
25(1).

A document highlighting the information 
that the auditee must submit has been issued 
by the AG. The document can be obtained 
from AG directive published in General Notice 
616	of	2008,	issued	in	Government	Gazette	
No.	31057	of	15	May	2008.

The	AG	may	opt,	in	terms	of	Section	4	(3)	of	
PAA, not to audit:

any public entity listed in the Public Finance 
Management	Act	(PFMA);	or	

any other institution not listed in PFMA, which 
is funded from the National Revenue Fund or 
a Provincial Revenue Fund or by a municipality 
authorised in terms of any legislation to 
receive money for a public purpose.

There are many entities that receive funding 
from government or for a public purpose that 
are not being audited by the AG. If you are 
an auditor of such an entity, or a member of 
management of such an entity, we encourage 
you to check that you are complying with the 
requirement. 

REGULATED INDUSTRIES

EXCHANGE CONTROL CIRCULARS
The Exchange Control Department of the 
South	African	Reserve	Bank	(EXCON)	has	
issued the following Exchange Control 
Circular:

No. 13/2008 – Authorised Dealers in 
Foreign Exchange.
Section	A.2	(A)	of	the	Exchange	Control	
Rulings has been amended to delete the 
name of Rennies Bank Limited and replace it 
with the name of Bidvest Bank Limited. 

Please direct any specific queries regarding 
the Exchange Control Circulars or Rulings to 
standards@saica.co.za.

FAIS FIT AND PROPER QUALIFICATION 
LIST APPLICATION 
The Financial Services Board has issued the 
following notice:

Fit and Proper Qualifications Application Form 
Accredited	providers/institutions/professional	
bodies	and/or	industry	associations	are	
invited to apply for qualifications to be 
recorded on the Fit and Proper Qualification 
List Application. 

Key individuals and representatives will, in 
future, be required to complete and obtain 
an ‘appropriate’ qualification. The notice is 
issued in order to simplify the identification 
of which qualifications are deemed to be 
‘appropriate’. The list of qualifications will be 
updated/amended	regularly.

Please visit the Financial Services Board 
website for more information: www.fsb.co.za. 

REMOVAL OF CIRCULAR 
Circular	1/2007	–	Medical Schemes 
Summarised Financial Statements has been 
removed from the SAICA website.

The	circular	was	replaced	by	Circular	38/2007	
– Summarised Financial Statements issued by 
the Council for Medical Schemes. Please direct 
any specific queries regarding the replacement 
Circular to standards@saica.co.za. 
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TAX
WHAT’S NEW AT SARS?

The	latest	updates	can	be	viewed	on	the	SARS	website	(www.sars.gov.za).

REVISED DRAFT REGULATION OF TAX PRACTITIONERS BILL 

SARS issued the revised draft Regulation of Tax Practitioners Bill on 
3	June	2008	for	public	comment.	This	process	was	accompanied	by	
a consultation between SARS and the professional associations that 
commented	on	the	initial	draft.	SAICA/SAIPA	attended	a	meeting	with	
representatives	from	SARS	in	July	2008	in	this	regard.	

SAICA submitted written comment, which was sourced from 
chartered accountants around the country, the SAICA leadership team 
and members of the National Tax Committee.
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practitioners that commit fraud are liable to prosecution under 
existing legislation.

• The removal of the requirement that practitioners keep “audit” files 
on their clients and report any irregularities in their clients’ tax 
affairs	to	the	South	African	Revenue	Service	(SARS).	Clients	that	are	
unhappy with the service they receive from practitioners, or in the 
event that SARS notice something suspicious in the tax affairs of a 
client of a tax practitioner, can report that to the Board.

• The Board will now comprise seven members of which at least three 
members must be practitioners and one a SARS representative. 
The SARS representative will have no voting rights nor sit on the 
investigative or disciplinary committees. 

SAICA has welcomed these changes, but has noted a number of 
uncertainties or situations that have not been dealt with.

SAICA’s comment letter is structured into two distinct parts. The 
first presents an accreditation model as an alternative to the current 
proposal contained in the Bill. The second covers specific comment on 
the Bill as it is currently drafted.

FULL ACCREDITATION MODEL

SAICA continues to support a full accreditation model. This was 
previously referred to in our joint submission to SARS, dated 8 
January	2008	(comment	provided	on	the	first	Draft	Regulation	of	Tax	
Practitioners Bill). We reproduce some of our earlier comment that is 
still applicable as follows:

The current Bill envisages a new body to govern tax practitioners, 
however, there are a number of bodies that currently govern the 
activities of their members, in a manner appropriate to support the 
principles which SARS wishes to achieve.

Professional bodies, such as SAICA, operate in a highly regulated 
environment. SAICA, for instance, is regulated in each of the following 
areas:

• Our education and training process is regulated as an Education 
and	Training	Quality	Assurer	(ETQA)	through	bodies	such	as	South	
African	Qualifications	Authority	(SAQA)	and	is	relevant	to	the	
auditing profession by the Independent Regulatory Board for 
Auditors	(IRBA).

• Our code of conduct, investigative and disciplinary processes are 
monitored and reviewed annually by the IRBA.

• Our requirement that members comply with Continuing 
Professional	Development	(CPD)	is	monitored	and	reviewed	
by, amongst others, the IRBA and International Federation of 
Accountants	(IFAC).

Although not a statutory body as envisaged in the Bill, SAICA operates 
within the confines of various areas of legislation, is accredited 
by various statutory bodies and remains a member of various 
international	organisations	(IFAC,	Global	Accounting	Alliance	(GAA),	
etc). 

Exclusive to SAICA members, 
Trainee accountants 
and Professionals employed at 
Accounting and Auditing firms.
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This accreditation and global recognition 
ensure continued protection of public 
interest by ensuring the quality, competence 
and commitment to continuous learning of 
all professionals registered with the Institute. 
SAICA must comply with the accreditation 
requirements prescribed by each of these 
bodies, failing which it will be struck off as an 
accredited member. Practitioners that belong 
to such professional bodies already meet 
the minimum requirements as articulated 
by SARS in the current version of the Bill. 
In this manner, only tax practitioners that 
are not already a member of such a body 
need join the new body for tax practitioners 
(alternatively	we	recommend	a	transitional	
period be allowed for the market to create 
professional bodies to cater for these tax 
practitioners). 

In this manner a double layer would not 
be created, as is the case with the current 
proposed draft Bill, which sees members 
(of	professional	bodies	that	meet	the	
requirements) being members of a number of 
different bodies.

The Bill should then set out the minimum 
requirements	(as	articulated	in	the	Bill)	
pertaining to:

•	 training	and	education	requirements;

• continued professional education 
requirements;

•	 a	code	of	conduct;	and

• disciplinary procedures.

It is our opinion that the role of the Board is 
to set the minimum standards related to each 
of these areas. Where professional bodies can 
demonstrate that they meet or exceed these 
minimum criteria, as stipulated by the Board 
through the Bill, such professional bodies 
should then be granted full accreditation. 
The Board should, on a regular basis, review 
the activities of the professional body 
to ensure that it continues to meet the 
minimum requirements as stipulated. Where 
a professional body fails to demonstrate that 
it meets those requirements on a consistent 
basis, its accreditation should be removed.

This model has a number of advantages, 
including the following:

• Protecting the public interest. The 
designations held by members of 
professional bodies will proactively alert 
members of the public to the competence 
of the relevant practitioner.

[  technical  ]

• This model allows for proactive monitoring 
of the quality and competence of tax 
practitioners and sufficient reactive 
measures through continued accreditation 
of professional bodies coupled with 
consistent and reliable investigative and 
disciplinary procedures.

• Reducing the number of members the 
‘Board’ directly regulates by accrediting 
professional bodies.

• Managing the potential added cost of 
establishing and running the Board by 
regulating a handful of professional bodies 
as compared to individuals.

• Reducing the ultimate added cost to 
business of doing business by effectively 
managing the cost of this regulatory 
structure. 

Edited by: Ewald Muller 
Technical queries: standards@saica.co.za
Ethics and Discipline queries:  
standards@saica.co.za 
Information Centre: pelmag@saica.co.za 
Telephone: 011 621 6641
Telefax: 011 621 6819 | Website:  
http://www.saica.co.za
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othing much seems to have altered since Heraclitus was 
alive in sixth century AD and made many comments in 
respect of change, including the one that is the title of this 

article. Because, right now, change is the only given that anyone living 
in South Africa can expect on a daily basis.
The most frustrating thing about the changes we are subjected to is 
that they are, for the most part, entirely outside of our control. Which 
means that most of us are under extreme stress and are paying a 
price, either mentally, physically or emotionally.
As we are all being bombarded with change, it is important for us 
to recognise how we are reacting and what personal damage is 
being done by the impact of change upon us. And then, of course, 
to provide interventions that take away the disempowerment and 
frustration of so much change.
The impact of change is experienced at an intellectual or mental level, 
at an emotional level and at a physical level:

 The Mental Challenges of Change
Our minds are wonderful instruments, finely tuned machines that 
we have come to rely on over the years. If you are a chartered 
accountant, you are used to being able to sit down and think your 
way through problems.
In fact, if you are a chartered accountant, professionally it is expected 
of you to think your way through problems – that is what you are 
paid to do, either by clients or employers.
But, how often do you find yourself waking during the night – at 
either	2,	3	or	4am	-	or	all	three	-	with	a	list	of	things	you	haven’t	
done and problems you haven’t solved, weighing you down like a 
sumo wrestler?
The unfortunate truth of your brain, no matter how high its quality, is 
that it is only able to deal with between three and nine chunks of new 
information at any one time. That means no matter how well honed 
and tuned your brain is, right now, it is under attack.
Consider the impact of globalisation, daily boundary-pushing 
inventions and scientific discoveries that make science fiction a daily 
reality of our lives.
Of itself, the South African environment is presenting each of us with 
the challenge of change on a daily basis. Add in the constantly changing 
organisational strategies, structures and systems of the working world, 
with the ever increasing expectations that are loaded on us all at work, 
together with the miscellany of incidental changes like interest rate 

increases, new legal requirements, uncertainty on implementation of new 
legal requirements and we find ourselves like experimental laboratory 
animals with a new maze challenging us each and every day.

Change is outpacing our ability to keep pace with it, to think our 
way through it and is creating too much uncertainty for the mind to 
cope with, and it is extorting a high price from our emotions and our 
physical bodies.

The Emotional Challenge of Change
What do I mean? Chartered accountants by reputation are not 
supposed to have emotions! Tell that to the CEO of a large corporation 
with whom I was coaching the other day. A chartered accountant by 
profession, recently appointed to his position, he was beleaguered, 
embattled and highly stressed. Because of the dishonesty and hostility 
in the organisation, he feels uncomfortable and he found little support 
from his team of directors, and he admitted to me there was only one 
person in the higher levels of the organisation that he trusted.

He had made it to the position of his dreams and was finding life a 
nightmare. 

How many of you are finding that your temperament has changed? 

How many have family, friends, staff or work colleagues who are 
treading delicately around your sensibilities?

How many of you, if you were honest, can look back over the past 
few weeks and see times when you have jumped down someone’s 
throat because they interrupted you? When you were told you were 
shouting? Or were just asked if you were okay because you looked 
furious, upset or angry about something?

How many of you can’t find the same satisfaction in doing your job, 
wish you could escape and do something different?

Have you asked yourself recently if it was worth all the effort you put 
in to become a chartered accountant in the face of what is happening 
in your business world?

If you have answered yes to more than one of the questions I have 
asked, then emotionally you are paying a price for the change that 
you are experiencing. And the price is either in anger – negative 
emotion delivered externally, or depression – negative emotion turned 
towards yourself. 

The Physical Challenge of Change
If the mind and emotions are in turmoil because of change, then it 
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is almost a given that the physical body will also be experiencing the 
negative effects of change.
What do I mean?
Take a look through most women’s magazines and you will find 
articles on stress and how to deal with it. Flip through Men’s Health, 
Best Life etc. the new wave of metro sexual magazines - and they are 
equally aware of the impact of stress on the physical body.
Headaches, high blood pressure, IBS*, heart attack, adult onset 
diabetes, stroke, obesity, poor concentration, lack of ability to focus, 
insomnia, excessive or abnormal sleep requirement are all symptoms 
of an overloaded mind and out of control emotions.
Where one drink used to relax you when you came home at night, it 
now	takes	two	or	three,	where	20	cigarettes	a	day	were	smoked,	now	
30	or	40	are	required.

The Challenge of Change
Why is it that human beings generally dislike the concept of change?
Most research talks about the fact that for change to be accepted 
there needs to be a personal belief that “I will be okay”. If this belief is 
present then change will be accepted, embraced and enjoyed.
With a negative perception and an underlying belief of “I am not 
going to be okay”, the response to change is to reject, fight, challenge, 
sabotage and, often, to move away.
So how do we manage change? Personally and professionally?
Much of the literature on change tends towards manipulation of the subjects 
of change to create either a grudging or willing acceptance of the new order. 
While you can fool some of the people all of the time, or is it all of the people 
some of the time…this scenario does pose problems when dealing with a 
highly intelligent audience, trained in “professional skepticism”.
The best way to understand how to manage change and your 
response to it, is to review how the best generative change agents 
work, with an audience or one-on-one in a coaching scenario.
The first task of the generative change agent in dealing with change 
stress is to alert the individual or the target audience to the fact that 
they are experiencing change stress by highlighting the symptoms 
described above.
The second task of the generative change agent is to convince the 
individual	or	target	audience	that	he/she	understands	their	world	and	
their perspective. This is usually best accomplished by a technique 
called “Active or Reflective Listening”. 

The subjects of change are encouraged to share what they are 
currently experiencing:

• Practically: Too much information, too many changes, 
too much ambiguity

• Emotionally: Frustration, anger, rage, depression, despondency, 
paralysis, helplessness, hopelessness, worthlessness

• Physically: Sleeplessness, headaches, anxiety, high blood pressure, 
poor memory, poor focus and concentration, low energy, tiredness, 
abnormal	and/or	excessive	need	of	sleep

The generative change agent merely reflects what is heard – what 
I	hear	you	say	is…	and	repeats	what	has	been	said	to	him/her.	
“Yes but…” or “You have to understand…?” and any other counter 
argument is forbidden.

This provides the subjects of change with a sense of being heard.

The third task is to remind the target audience of whom they are, 
what skills and capabilities they have, and to reinforce their sense of 
identity and purpose.

The fourth task of the generative change agent is to co-create a vision 
through the change that is invigorating, empowering and magnetic for 
the	individual	or	group.	This	vision	has	to	be	built	by	the	subject(s)	of	
the change because it has to meet their deepest needs and desires, and 
so must be fine-tuned and honed by their inner needs.

The fifth and final task of the generative change agent is to ensure 
that a path is crafted from the present to a future point comfort 
beyond	the	change	(the	vision).	This	may	involve	interventions	that	
include training, coaching, communication, workshops and further 
fine-tuning of the vision to ensure it continues to be appropriate and 
satisfying for the individual.

Given that change is a constant in an inconstant world, it is 
absolutely essential that change agents impart knowledge and skills 
to their clients so that a personal resource and skill base is built.

*Irritable Bowel Syndrome 
Chris Kennedy a generative change agent, strategic business and life 
coach, transformation consultant and facilitator with seventeen years 
experience. She has facilitated change in many leading organisations, 
including KPMG where she assisted with the merger between KMMT 
and KPMG. Currently she is working with SABC3 on her project 
Phenomenal Women designed to provide Tools for Successful Women. 
She consults to SAICA through Enigma HR Consulting.  

Heraclitus by Johannes Moreelse. The image depicts him as “the weeping philosopher”.
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ordinary	activities	(for	example,	cars	held	by	
car rental companies) should be transferred 
to inventories at their carrying amount 
when they cease to be rented and are held 
for sale. The proceeds from the sale of such 
assets should be recognised as revenue 
in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue. Such 
assets	are	outside	the	scope	of	IFRS	5.	IAS	
7 Statement of Cash Flows is also amended 
to require the cash flows to acquire or 
manufacture such assets and the cash 
receipts from renting and subsequent sale 
of such assets to be classified as cash flows 
from operating activities.

Prior to the amendment, IAS 16 only 
permitted the recognition of a net gain 
or loss on disposal. It did not permit the 
recognition of the proceeds as revenue and 
the carrying amount as cost of sales.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits - 
Replacement of term ‘fall due’

The IASB has concluded that the critical 
factor in distinguishing between short-term 
and other long-term employee benefits 
is the timing of the expected settlement. 
Accordingly, the words ‘fall due’ have been 
replaced with ‘due to be settled’ in the 
definitions for short-term and other long-term 
employee benefits. As a result, accrued leave 
that is due to an employee, but is not expected 
to be taken within twelve months after the 
end of the period in which the related services 
are rendered, would be treated as an other 
long-term benefit.

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements - Measurement 
of subsidiary held for sale in separate 
financial statements

IAS	27	is	aligned	with	IFRS	5	by	clarifying	
that a parent entity that accounts for an 
investment in a subsidiary in accordance with 

hile most people in South Africa 
are	focusing	on	2010	and	the	soccer	
World	Cup;	2009	will	be	the	year	

of the next wave of change in accounting 
standards. There are no fewer than twenty 
five standards that are new or that have been 
amended or revised, which need to be applied 
from	2009.	This	brings	back	memories	of	2005	
when we had the last big wave of change. 
Now is the time to start considering the 
potential	impact	of	the	2009	changes.

The reason why there are so many changes 
in	2009	is	as	a	result	of	the	moratorium	that	
the	IASB	agreed	to	in	2006	under	which	there	
would be no new or amended standards 
effective	before	1	January	2009.	This	was	done	
in order to have a stable platform for a four 
year period. During this period, the IASB has 
been busy on its own projects as well as on 
joint projects with the FASB. The objective of 
the changes and new standards is to improve 
financial reporting and achieve, ultimately, 
convergence of global accounting standards. 
This article highlights some of the significant 
changes	that	are	effective	in	2009.

Annual Improvements Project

In	October	2007,	the	IASB	started	its	annual	
improvements project by issuing an exposure 
draft of proposed amendments to standards. 
This annual project is intended to be a 
vehicle for making non-urgent but necessary 
amendments to standards. The amendments 
are generally meant to be clarifications of 
expected practice. Arising out of the first 
project	are	improvements/changes	to	20	
standards	that	were	published	in	May	2008	
– some of these changes are only editorial 
or terminology changes, and are likely to 
have no or but a minimal accounting effect. 
Refer to the Improvements to IFRSs, also 
issued by the Accounting Practices Board as 

Improvements to Statements of GAAP, in the 
SAICA on-line handbook. 

Some of the more significant changes are 
highlighted below.

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
and Discontinued Operations – Plan 
to sell the controlling interest in a 
subsidiary

If an entity is committed to a sale plan 
involving the loss of control of a subsidiary 
(regardless	of	whether	a	non-controlling	
interest is retained), then it should classify 
all of that subsidiary’s assets and liabilities 
as held for sale when the held for sale 
criteria	in	paragraphs	6	to	8	of	IFRS	5	are	
met. Disclosures for discontinued operations 
would be required when the subsidiary meets 
the definition of a discontinued operation. 

Prior to the amendment it was not clear 
how	to	apply	IFRS	5	if	say	a	70%	investment	
in	a	subsidiary	was	reduced	to	20%.	Some	
possible views were to:

classify none of the subsidiary’s assets and 
liabilities as held-for-sale on the basis that 
an	interest	is	retained;	or

classify	80%	of	the	subsidiary’s	assets	and	
liabilities as held-for-sale on the basis that 
a	20%	interest	is	retained	and	therefore	
effectively	80%	is	sold;	or	

classify	100%	of	the	subsidiary’s	assets	and	
liabilities as held-for-sale on the basis that, 
since the subsidiary would no longer be 
consolidated	after	the	sale,	it	is	as	if	100%	of	
the assets and liabilities have been sold.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 
- Sale of assets held for rental

Assets that are rented and then subsequently 
sold on a routine basis in the course of 

W

2009 a n
ew wave of change



[ October 2008 ] 23

cover

IAS	39	(in	its	separate	financial	statements)	
and subsequently classifies the investment 
as	held	for	sale	(or	held	in	a	disposal	group	
classified as held for sale) would continue to 
account for the investment in accordance 
with IAS 39. Previously, it was unclear as to 
how	IFRS	5	should	be	applied	in	the	separate	
financial statements of the parent when the 
investment was recognised at fair value prior 
to being reclassified as held-for-sale.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates - 
Impairment of investment in associate

IAS 28 is amended to clarify that an 
impairment loss on an investment in an 
associate is not allocated to any asset, 
including goodwill, that forms part of the 
carrying amount of the investment in the 
associate. This is because the investment 
in associate is treated as a single asset. 
For this reason, all such impairment losses 
are permitted to be reversed. Prior to the 
amendment some were of the view that 
impairment losses on investments in 
associates needed to be allocated to the 
individual assets, including goodwill, making 
up the investment. 

IAS 38 Intangible Assets – Advertising 
and promotional activities

IAS 38 is amended to clarify the timing of 
recognition of an expense for advertising 
and promotional activities. In the case of 
goods	(for	example,	catalogues),	an	expense	
is recognised when the entity has the right to 
access those goods. A right to access goods 
is received by the entity when the supplier 
has made them available to the entity. In 
the	case	of	services	(for	example,	airing	an	
advertisement on television), an expense is 
recognised when the entity receives those 
services. A prepayment can be recognised as 
an asset only when payment has been made 

in advance of the entity obtaining the right 
to access the goods or receiving the services. 

The clarification is likely to impact current 
practice. For example, say a retailer who 
wants to distribute catalogues to its 
customers in order to advertise its products, 
orders	1000	catalogues	to	be	printed	from	
a print shop. The retailer’s year-end is 31 
December	2009,	the	catalogues	are	delivered	
to	the	retailer	on	28	December	2009	and	
only distributed to the customers in January 
2010.	The	cost	of	the	catalogues	would	need	
to	be	expensed	in	2009	since	the	retailer	had	
access to the catalogues then.

IAS 40 Investment Property – 
Property under construction or 
development for future use as 
investment property

IAS	40	is	amended	to	include	property	under	
construction or development for future use 
as investment property in its definition of 
‘investment property’. This results in such 
property	being	within	the	scope	of	IAS	40;	
previously it was within the scope of IAS 16.

IAS 41 Agriculture – Additional 
biological transformation

The	previous	prohibition	in	IAS	41	
from considering ‘additional biological 
transformation’ when calculating fair value 
using discounted cash flows has been 
deleted. The amendment also clarifies that 
a discounted cash flow model is used to 
estimate a market-based value of the asset in 
its current location and condition.

Other changes

As noted above, the IASB has many projects 
that	it	has	been	and/or	is	currently	working	
on in order to improve the quality of 
financial reporting standards and working 
towards achieving convergence of global 

accounting standards. It is worth noting that 
in	2007	the	Securities	Exchange	Commission	
(SEC)	approved	the	application	of	IFRS	in	
the preparation of financial statements of 
foreign companies listed on the New York 
Stock Exchange without a reconciliation to 
US GAAP. In fact, the SEC is considering a 
proposal to permit US companies to apply 
IFRS rather than US GAAP.

The following highlights those new or 
amended standards that are effective during 
20091:

IAS 1 (AC 101) Presentation of 
Financial Statements – New format 
and terminology

This revised standard introduces the concept 
of ‘total comprehensive income’. Total 
comprehensive income is defined as the 
change in equity for the period resulting from 
transactions and other events, other than 
those changes resulting from transactions 
with owners in their capacity as owners. ‘Other 
comprehensive income’ comprises items of 
income and expense that are not recognised 
in profit or loss as required or permitted by 
the standards. Although the standard uses 
new terminology, for example, what was 
previously referred to as a ‘balance sheet’ is 
now a ‘statement of financial position’, the 
new terminology is not mandatory. A set 
of financial statements now comprises: a 
statement	of	financial	position	(balance	sheet),	
a	statement	of	comprehensive	income	(either	
in one statement or an income statement, and 
a separate statement of items recognised in 
other comprehensive income), a statement 
of	changes	in	equity	(showing	only	owner	
movements in equity), a statement of cash 
flows and notes to the financial statements. 
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IAS 23 (AC 114) Borrowing Costs

The benchmark treatment of expensing 
borrowing costs has been deleted, which 
means that all borrowing costs need to 
be capitalised where there are qualifying 
assets. This amendment could have a 
significant impact because many South 
African companies currently do not capitalise 
borrowing costs.

IFRS 2 (AC 129) Share-based Payment 
– Vesting conditions and cancellations

This amendment clarifies that vesting 
conditions are either service or performance 
conditions, and that performance conditions 
must require, either explicitly or implicitly, 
services to be rendered by the counterparty. 
All other conditions that need to be satisfied 
are non-vesting conditions, which should 
be factored into the fair value of the equity 
instruments and are not subject to any true-
up if the conditions are not met. For example, 
if, under an employee share-option scheme 
at a gold mining company, share options can 
only be exercised if the gold price reaches 
$1000	per	ounce,	this	would	be	a	non-
vesting condition. Therefore, if any service 
conditions	are	met	(an	IFRS	2	charge	is	
recognised in profit and loss over the service 
period), but the target gold price is not met, 
there can be no reversal of any previously 
recognised IFRS 2 charge.

IFRS 8 (AC 145) Operating Segments

This	new	standard	replaces	IAS	14	Segment 
Reporting. IFRS 8 is fundamentally different 
from	IAS	14	in	that	it	requires	segment	
identification and segment information to 
be determined and presented ‘through the 
eyes of management’ – i.e. on the basis 
used by the chief operating decision maker 
for allocating resources and evaluating 
the performance of components of the 
business.	IAS	14	specified	how	segments	
should be determined and required segment 
information to be IFRS-compliant.

IFRS 3 (AC140) Business 
Combinations and IAS 27 (AC132) 
Separate and Consolidated Financial 
Statements
These revised standards bring about some 
significant changes to accounting for 
business combinations and investments in 
subsidiaries. For example, transaction costs 
need to be expensed, they cannot be included 
in	the	purchase	price	(and	ultimately	
included	in	goodwill);	goodwill	can	be	
recognised in respect of the non-controlling 
interest	(minority	interest);	reacquired	rights	
need	to	be	recognised	at	fair	value	(previous	
standard	was	silent);	settlement	of	pre-
existing relationships gives rise to gains or 
losses	(previous	standard	was	silent);	in	step	
acquisitions, previous non-controlling equity 
interests held are deemed to be disposed of 
at fair value, which is then included in the 
purchase	price	to	determine	goodwill;	and	
similarly on disposal of a controlling interest, 
the interest retained is also measured at fair 
value, which is included in the sale proceeds 
to determine the profit or loss on disposal. 

Under the revised IAS 27, transactions to 
increase or decrease an investment in a 
subsidiary while maintaining and retaining 
control are treated as equity transactions – 
i.e. there can be no impact on profit or loss 
or	any	asset	(including	goodwill)	or	liability.	
Only once control is lost is there an impact 
on profit or loss. Also, there is no longer a 
restriction on allocating losses of a subsidiary 
to	the	non-controlling	interest	(minority	
interest) – the non-controlling interest can 
have a debit balance.

IFRS 1 (AC 138) First-time Adoption 
of IFRS and IAS 27 (AC132) 
Separate and Consolidated Financial 
Statements
The most significant change here relates to 
the treatment of dividends received. There is 
no longer a requirement to determine whether 
they were paid out of pre- or post-acquisition 
profits to determine whether they should be 
shown as revenue or as a reduction of the 

investment. Now, all dividends should be 
recognised in profit or loss. An impairment 
test may then be required to be performed to 
determine whether any write-down is required.

IAS 32 (AC 125) Financial 
Instruments: Presentation – Puttable 
instruments
The amendment permits the classification of 
certain financial instruments as equity, which 
would ordinarily be classified as financial 
liabilities, as long as certain requirements are 
met. This amendment is not expected to have 
wide-spread application given that one of the 
requirements is that the instruments need to 
be the most subordinate class of instruments. 
For a company, the most subordinate class 
of instruments is the ordinary shares, which 
anyway are equity. The amendment is likely 
to be applicable to unit trusts and similar 
entities that do not have ordinary shares.

Interpretations
For completeness, it is noted that the 
following interpretations2 are also effective 
during	2009:	

•	 IFRIC	13	(AC	446)	Customer Loyalty 
Programmes – effective for annual periods 
beginning	on	or	after	1	July	2008;

•	 IFRIC	15	(AC	448)	Construction of Real 
Estate – effective for annual periods 
beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2009;	and	

•	 IFRIC	16	(AC	449)	Hedges of a Net 
Investment in a Foreign Operation – 
effective for annual periods beginning on 
or	after	1	October	2008.

Conclusion
Do	not	wait	for	2009	or	worse,	2010.	Start	
preparing now for the next wave of changes 
in accounting standards. They are likely to 
affect your financial reporting.
1 This is at the time of writing the article 
2 This is at the time of writing the article 

Kim Bromfield CA(SA), is a Partner in the 
Technical Department of Professional Practice 
at KPMG.
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Cash in on skills development.

F A S S E T

Have you cashed in yet? Levy-paying or non-levy-paying SMMEs 
registered with Fasset can apply for a Learnership Cash Grant. In 
addition to improved productivity, tax deductions and the opportunity 
to facilitate tangible skills development and social upliftment, you can 
get up to R25 000 in cash. If your company has initiated a registered 
learnership in 2008 for a Black (African, Indian or coloured) learner, 
or a learner with a disability, who is a South African citizen, you are 
eligible to apply for your Learnership Cash Grant. 31 December 2008 
is the deadline for the registration of learners and 31 March 2009 is the 
date by which your application for your Learnership Cash Grant must be 
submitted to Fasset. 

To cash in now, fi nd full details by calling 086 101 0001 or visiting 
www.fasset.org.za.
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nternational Public Sector Accounting Standards 
(IPSASs)	are	the	public	sector	accounting	standards	of	
choice	for	many	countries	of	the	world.	Almost	70	countries	

have adopted IPSASs or are in the process of adopting IPSASs. Many 
international organisations, most notably the United Nations, are also in 
the process of adopting IPSASs. 

IPSASs and national accounting standard setting bodies
Many countries have chosen not to adopt IPSASs lock, stock and 
barrel, but have developed standards that are similar to IPSASs. 
The main reason is that many countries want to adapt the public 
accounting standards to their own environment. South Africa’s public 
sector standards are based on IPSAS, as are those of Australia, Canada 
and New Zealand. The website of the Accounting Standards Board 
(www.asb.co.za) presents the South-African deviations from IPSASs.    

The UK public sector is the only public sector that we know of that 
has chosen to adopt International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs),	and	supplement	them	where	necessary	with	other		standards,	
primarily IPSASs.

IPSAS in South Africa
South Africa is one of only a select group of countries that has adopted 
accrual accounting for their central governments. South Africa started 
its	public	sector	reform	process	in	2003	and	will	start	implementing	
17 accrual-based public sector Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting	Practice	(GRAP)	within	the	next	year.	The	standards,	
developed by the Accounting Standards Board, will be applied in all the 
public sector entities except for departments, where they will be phased in 
over a period of time. The standards are based on IPSASs.

IPSASs and IFRSs
IPSASs are issued by the IPSAS Board of the International Federation 
of Accountants, which is the global organisation of the accounting 
profession.	The	IPSAS	Board	(on	which	one	of	the	authors	sits)	
focuses on the accounting and financial reporting needs of the public 
sector, whether it be a national or regional government, or an inter-
governmental organisation.

IPSASs are closely aligned to IFRSs and this helps promote the 
International Accounting Standards Board ideal of a single set of 
global accounting standards. International Financial Reporting 
Standards	(IFRSs)	are	issued	by	the	International	Accounting	
Standards	Board	(IASB),	which	is	an	independent	body	committed	to	
setting a single set of global accounting standards. 

There	are	currently	26	accrual	based	IPSASs	(and	one	cash	based	
IPSAS) of which 23 are directly based on IFRSs while three are not. 
An example of an IPSAS where there is currently no equivalent IFRS is 
IPSAS	24	Presentation	of	Budget	Information	in	Financial	Statements.	
This standard requires a comparison of budget amounts and the 
actual amounts arising from execution of the budget to be included in 
the financial statements of entities that make publicly available their 
approved budget, and for which they are held publicly accountable. In 
fact, one of the reasons that the Swedish government chose to embrace 
accrual accounting was that it was a means to facilitate the linking 
of budgets to outputs. The Swedish government referred to this as 
“results	based	budgeting”;	under	IPSAS	24	the	linking	of	budgets	and	
outturn in the financial statements is transparently presented. There is 
no	equivalent	IFRS	standard	to	IPSAS	24,	because	organisations	in	the	
private sector do not usually make their budget publicly available, since 
it would reveal too much of their strategy to competitors.

What are the benefits of IPSASs?

The	United	Nations	General	Assembly,	which	adopted	IPSAS	in	2006,	
considered the following to be the  main benefits of IPSASs:

• Improved internal control and transparency in respect of assets and 
liabilities generally.

• The alignment with best accounting practices through the application 
of credible, independent accounting standards on a full accrual basis.

• More comprehensive information about costs that will better 
support results-based management.

• The integration of non-expendable equipment into the accounting 
system, with resulting improvements in the accuracy and 
completeness of non-expendable equipment records.

• Improved consistency and comparability of financial statements as 
a result of the detailed requirements and guidance provided in each 
standard.

Benefits: Improved allocation of capital

Many public sector organisations see the improved management and 
allocation of infrastructure assets as one of the major benefits of 
IPSASs and accrual accounting. This can be illustrated by way of the 
following simple example:

A government wants to build a bridge and the bridge will take two 
years to complete. The government pays the contractor 50 per 
cent of the costs upfront and the remaining 50 per cent of costs 

I
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on delivery. The bridge is expected to last 100 years and will cost 
Rand 20 million. Under cash accounting Rand 10 million hits the 
statement of financial performance in both years 1 and 2 while, 
under accrual accounting, only Rand 200,000 hits the statement of 
financial performance for 100 years. Cash accounting reflects the 
cash flows of the transactions while accrual accounting reflects the 
usage of the asset. 

In	a	governmental	(and	therefore	political)	setting	the	different	
results under cash and accrual accounting matter. A politician may 
be more likely to invest in building a bridge in an election year if the 
government’s financial statements reflect the accruals based usage of 
the	bridge	rather	than	cash	flows	of	the	purchase;	one	method	has	
a far greater impact on the bottom line, which may prove significant 
in an election year. One of the reasons why Canada adopted accrual 
accounting was that it thought that it would positively influence 
infrastructure investment decisions.

IPSASs and the developing world

Many developing countries are also in the process of adopting IPSASs. 
Many of these countries are currently implementing the cash-based 
IPSASs which are seen as a stepping stone towards the future 
adoption of accrual accounting. 

Many countries have projects that are being funded by international 
donor organisations, such as the World Bank and the International 
Monetary Fund, while in the case of southern and eastern Africa, it is 
the	Swedish	Development	Agency	(SIDA)	that	is	providing	financial	
assistance to the process. The World Bank has been a promoter and 
sponsor of the IPSASB since its inception.

The adoption of IPSASs is viewed as a means towards improving 
accountability in those countries and it is a move that should 
be supported. The adoption by developing countries should not 
be underestimated, because the move towards an effective and 
transparent accounting system will hopefully lead to better resource 
allocation	and	less	wastage	(i.e.	corruption)	in	public	sector	finances.	
Such a development will hopefully also lead to improved investor 
confidence and an improved economic outlook.

IPSASs must go hand in hand with a strong audit framework

The risk of corruption in developing countries will diminish further 
as the cash based IPSASs are gradually superseded by the accruals 
based IPSAS. However, the risk of corruption can only be mitigated 
by sufficient checks and balances in the system to reduce the 

temptation	to	steal	(i.e.	the	risk	of	being	caught)	such	as	a	strong	
audit framework. 

In many developing countries there are moves towards strengthening 
the audit function in government, and many donors are supporting 
their efforts to improve accountability through IPSASs by working 
to strengthen the technical capacity in the respective countries’ 
government auditing professions. 

We note a significant rise in the number of qualified chartered 
accountants working for the South African Auditor-General and an 
even higher number in training. It is clear that the Auditor-General 
and his staff will play a critical role in working with the public sector 
in the move towards accrual accounting, and we would anticipate 
that the South African accounting profession will have a substantial 
role in providing leadership and guidance to their colleagues in the 
rest of southern and eastern Africa as they embrace the challenge of 
implementing IPSASs and setting up an effective audit framework.

IPSAS – The future

We are delighted with the way that IPSASs are taking hold and 
how they are being embraced. There appears to be genuine hope 
that sometime in the not too distant future most of the world will 
embrace similar and comparable financial statements through IFRSs, 
IPSASs or similar standards.

The IPSAS Board is currently working on establishing, amongst 
other things, a standard for Financial Instruments, and a conceptual 
framework for government accounting. In the future, it will approach 
the subject of accounting for intangible assets in the public sector. At 
the times when no IPSAS exists, users must defer to other accounting 
standards, such as IFRSs.

We are working in many countries at the moment and with a number 
of international organisations as they move towards adopting IPSASs. 
There are many issues that are proving challenging for organisations 
in the public sector, such as how to account for controlled entities 
and grants that have been made. This demonstrates that there is still 
much work to be done. We look forward in future issues to sharing 
more observations on IPSASs and the issues they are raising. 

Ian Sanderson CA(SA), works in the field of international development 
for Deloitte  in Geneva, Switzerland and Professor Frans van Schaik 
CA(SA), is a member of the IPSAS Board of the International Federation 
of Accountants and works for Deloitte in The Hague, Netherlands.

IMPROVING ACCOUNTABILITY
ACROSS THE WORLD
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Performing Rights in Sound Recordings 
in South Africa up to 1965
By	virtue	of	section	143	of	South	Africa’s	
Patents, Designs, Trade Marks and Copyright 
Act of 1916, the British Copyright Act of 1911 
(hereinafter	referred	to	as	“the	British	Act”)	
was made applicable to the Union of South 
Africa. In 1932, the organised record industry 
suggested	that	section	19(1)	of	the	British	
Copyright Act, had an implied “performing 
right” in a sound recording because of the 
words: “in like manner as if such contrivances 
were musical works”. Since a “performing 
right” existed in musical works, logic dictated 
that a performing right should exist in a 
sound recording. 

This view was put to the test in the case of 
Gramophone Co Ltd. v Stephen Cawardine & 
Co	(1934)	Ch	450.	The	court	held	that	section	
19(1)	did	in	fact	confer	a	performing	right	on	
the record manufacturer.

In the early days of broadcasting in South 
Africa, the licence fee for broadcasting 
sound recordings amounted to a few pence 
per annum for every licensed listener. In 
approximately	1949,	the	International	
Federation	of	Phonographic	Industry	(IFPI),	i.e.	
the representative association of the recording 
industry, and the SABC reached an agreement 
whereby the SABC would pay the IFPI a fee per 
side of a record used in a “spot” programme. 

This	agreement	continued	until	1964.	In	
that year, a Select Committee of Parliament 
was appointed to consider a Draft Bill on 
copyright. The said Bill had been prepared 
along	the	lines	of	the	(then)	recently	
adopted	Copyright	Act	of	1956	of	the	United	
Kingdom. Similar to the British Act, the 
proposed Bill provided for separate rights 
in a “sound recording”. This did not find its 
way	into	the	Act.	In	1965,	the	right	of	record	
companies to be remunerated for the use 
of their sound recordings was removed by 
Parliament at the instance of the government 

of the day and the lobby of commercial users 
of recorded music. 
The amendment, amongst others, favoured 
the South African Broadcasting Corporation 
and it has taken the recording industry, and 
the South African performer community, 
about	40	years	to	restore	a	right	that	should	
never have been taken away. 

The Copyright Amendment Act, 2002
 On	25	June	2002	the	Copyright	Amendment	
Act was promulgated, re-introducing 
performance right income, popularly referred 
to as “needletime”, after an absence of 37 
years. The amendments granted the owners 
of copyright in music sound recordings the 
exclusive right to do or to authorise the 
doing of any of the following acts in the 
Republic of South Africa:

• Broadcasting the sound recording.

• Causing the sound recording to be 
transmitted in a diffusion service, unless 
that service transmits a lawful broadcast, 
including the sound recording, and is 
operated	by	the	original	broadcaster	(e.g.	
music-on-hold on a switchboard).

• Communicating the sound recording to the 
public	(e.g.	background	music	played	in	a	
retail outlet, restaurant or shopping centre).

Although owners and performers had been 
entitled to be paid by broadcasters and 
other users for the commercial use of their 
sound	recordings	since	June	2002,	there	
had been a long delay in implementing 
these rights by owners of sound recordings. 
The delay had been caused primarily by the 
delay in publishing regulations to govern 
collecting societies that implement and 
administer the right. The process of applying 
for accreditation, after the publication of 
the regulations, also added to delays in the 
implementation of the right.

The copyright owner of the music sound 
recording, as defined in this legislation, is the 

person that invested in making the sound 
recording, being the record company or record 
label. The copyright owner of the music sound 
recording has an exclusive right to receive a 
royalty, but has an obligation to share the royalty 
with	the	performer	whose	performance(s)	is/are	
embodied in each sound recording. 

In this way, investors in sound recordings 
will be remunerated for their investment and 
risk in creating new sound recordings that 
are used in the course of the third parties’ 
commercial activities, while performers 
will be remunerated for their performance 
contributions to those recordings. 

The South African Music Performance 
Rights	Association	(SAMPRA)	has	more	than	
thirty published tariffs that are applicable 
to various categories of use. Details of the 
applicable tariffs are available on SAMPRA’s 
website	(http://www.sampra.org.za),	or	can	
be obtained from SAMPRA’s offices at Suite 
4,	150	Bram	Fischer	Drive,	cnr	Republic	
Road,	Randburg.	At	the	beginning	of	2008,	
SAMPRA representatives embarked on a 
national licensing programme and have been 
mandated to make contact with all users in 
all the relevant usage categories. 

The trading names of record companies 
and labels that are members of Recording 
Industry	South	Africa	(RiSA)	and	the	
copyright owners of the sound recordings, 
which may not be broadcast, diffused 
or communicated to the public without 
payment of a licence fee can be found on the 
SAMPRA website. These record companies 
and	labels	own	an	estimated	95%	of	music	
sound recordings that have been played on 
South	African	radio	stations	since	June	2002,	
and that are currently played by broadcasters. 
SAMPRA offers users a blanket licence in 
respect of all repertoires owned by these 
record companies and labels, but is not able 
to license music sound recordings that are 
owned by non-members of RiSA. All these 
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Music makes good business sense.
The communication of sound recordings to the public, the diffusing of sound recordings and the 
broadcasting of sound recordings are copyrights which are administered by SAMPRA.

To ensure compliance with International Auditing Standards, Auditors must ensure that their clients make 
payment of required copyright royalties to SAMPRA in respect of their usage of music sound recordings. 

Copyright theft is the same as any other theft.

SAMPRA serves the interests of copyright owners of sound recordings, business owners and auditors by 
providing a one stop shop to ensure compliance with all legal requirements in respect of the  commercial 
usage of music sound recordings.

Recorded music that makes 
your business sound.

South African Music Performance Rights Association

0861 SAMPRA
info@sampra .org.za
www.sampra .org.za
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owners assert their copyright ownership on 
all sound carriers, accompanying artwork and 
packaging of all sound recordings released 
by them. If a user raises a dispute regarding 
a licence royalty charged by SAMPRA in 
terms of the applicable tariff, the user may 
(until	such	time	as	the	matter	is	resolved	by	
the Copyright Tribunal), continue to use the 
sound recordings in SAMPRA’s repertoire if 
the user pays the licence fee proposed by 
SAMPRA into an escrow account. 

Auditor’s Responsibility
Non-compliance with the provisions of the 
Copyright Act exposes music users to the risk 
of litigation. The obligation to pay a royalty, 
is a statutory obligation. All accountants 
and auditors, as well as trainees, are urged 
to ensure compliance by clients that are 
music users and need to ensure that these 
obligations are provided for in their clients’ 
financial statements in accordance with 
International Auditing Standards.

South African businesses have become 
accustomed to making payment of a licence 
fee to the Southern African Music Rights 
Organisation	(SAMRO).	There	is	no	connection	
whatsoever between SAMRO and SAMPRA. 

When you pay SAMRO you pay a royalty 
that is intended to go to the composer of 
each song you play. When you pay SAMPRA, 
you pay a royalty that goes to the artist that 
performs the song and to the record company 
that has invested in making the recording of 
that song by that artist.
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memorandum of incorporation to be binding between the company 
and each shareholder, between or among the shareholders and 
between the company and each director or officer of the company 
and any person serving as a member of the audit committee or any 
other committee of the board. This document may only be amended 
in terms of a court order or by virtue of a special resolution.

The Board of Directors

The Bill provides for the business and affairs of a company to be 
managed by or under the direction of its board. The board has the 
authority to perform any of the functions of the company except to 
the extent that the Companies Act or memorandum of incorporation 
provides otherwise. A private company or personal liability company 
requires at least one director whilst a public company or a non-profit 
company requires at least three directors. These minimum numbers may 
be increased in a company’s memorandum of incorporation. Should 
a company at any time fail to have the requisite minimum number 
of directors, the authority of the board will not be limited or negated, 
neither will anything done by the board or the company be invalidated. 
A company must have at least one director resident in the Republic.

The memorandum of incorporation may also provide for:

a. the direct appointment or removal of one or more directors 
by any person who is named in, or determined in terms of, the 
memorandum	of	incorporation;

b. a person to be an ex officio director as a consequence of holding an 
office,	title,	designation	or	similar	status;

c.	 the	appointment	or	election	of	alternate	directors;	and

d.	shareholders	of	profit	companies	(other	than	state	owned	entities)	
to	elect	at	least	50%	of	directors	and	at	least	50%	of	any	alternate	
directors.

The first directors of a company are the incorporators. The board may 
comprise directors that are permanent, alternate, temporary or ex 
officio, all with common duties and liabilities.

A person becomes a director of a company when that person has 
been appointed or elected or holds an office, title, designation or 
similar	status	entitling	that	person	to	serve	as	a	director;	and	has	all	
the powers, functions and duties of any director and is subject to all 
of the liabilities of any director. The memorandum of incorporation 
may limit the powers and functions of the ex officio director, but not 
the duties and liabilities. 

Introduction

On	27	June	2008	the	Companies	Bill	was	released	for	public	comment.	
This article is based on that version of the Bill.

The world has changed drastically since 1973 when the present 
Companies Act was passed. No longer can we allow those who abuse 
their power and rob innocent shareholders of their hard earned 
money to walk free and not be called to account! Okay, this may 
sound a bit dramatic, but the bottom line is that those entrusted with 
the leadership of an organisation must know and fulfill their duties.

The current situation

Presently the rights and obligations of a director are imposed by 
the Companies Act, the articles of association of a company and 
the common law. A director is required to act in good faith, act 
independently, with the degree of care, diligence and skill that 
may	reasonably	be	expected	from	a	person	of	his/her	knowledge	
and experience, within the scope of authority as prescribed by the 
memorandum and articles of association of a company, and as a 
member of the board. 

The King Committee’s code of corporate practices and conduct 
elaborates	on	the	duties	and	obligations	of	a	director;	and	those	
affected by the King Code include JSE listed companies, banks, 
financial and insurance entities and public sector enterprises 
governed by the Public Finance Management Act. Mervyn King, 
convener of the King Commission has made no secret of the fact that 
the King Commission has never supported the idea of making the 
King Report statutory. The third King report is expected to be released 
towards the end of this year and is also based on a comply or explain 
philosophy, rather than a comply or else philosophy.

What does the Companies Bill say?

In addition to encouraging entrepreneurship and high standards of 
corporate governance, amongst other things, another purpose of the 
Companies Bill is to balance the rights and obligations of shareholders 
and directors and also to encourage the efficient and responsible 
management of a company. In terms of the Bill a company’s 
governing	document	is	the	memorandum	of	incorporation	(no	longer	
the memorandum and articles of association), which is consistently 
referred to throughout the Bill. The memorandum of incorporation 
should serve as a higher standard than legislation and should 
allow for smoother governance processes. It is intended for the 
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features

Directors may be remunerated for their services unless provided 
otherwise in the memorandum of incorporation. However, 
remuneration may only be paid in accordance with a special 
resolution approved by the shareholders within the previous two 
years. The practicality of this clause may certainly prove a challenge, 
and will undoubtedly serve as yet another reason to make the position 
of a South African director somewhat unattractive.

A director may be appointed for an indefinite term unless otherwise 
stipulated in the memorandum of incorporation. An indefinite term 
of office really does go against basic corporate governance principles, 
so hopefully this provision is excluded from the final Act. Unless the 
memorandum of incorporation provides otherwise, a board may also 
appoint a director on a temporary basis, and such temporary director 
will have all the powers, functions and duties of a director and be 
subject to all of the liabilities of any other director of the company.

This version of the Bill also provides for the Minister to appoint a 
“prescribed officer” within a company. The rest remains a mystery as 
the Minister is yet to publish regulations in this regard.

Provisions for filling vacancies on a board and removal of directors 
are also dealt with and it is a requirement that, within ten business 
days after a person ceases to be a director, a company must file a 
notice in that regard.

Who may not be a director?

Juristic	persons,	unemancipated	minors	(or	persons	under	similar	legal	
disability) or anyone who does not satisfy any qualification set out in 
the memorandum of incorporation are ineligible to be a director.

Unless exempt by a court on application, you may not be a director, 
ex officio director, alternate director, temporary director or prescribed 
officer if:

•	 a	court	has	prohibited	you	from	accepting	a	directorship	position;

•	 you	are	an	unrehabilitated	insolvent;

• you are prohibited in terms of any public regulation to be a director 
of	the	company;

• you have been removed from an office of trust on the grounds of 
misconduct,	involving	dishonesty;	or

• you have been convicted in the Republic or elsewhere, and 
imprisoned without the option of a fine, or fined more than the 
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prescribed amount, for theft, fraud, forgery, perjury or an offence 
(involving	fraud,	misrepresentation	or	dishonesty,	in	connection	
with the promotion, formation or management of a company, or 
in connection with ineligibility or disqualification to serve as a 
director or probation in terms of a court order).

The final of the grounds for disqualification mentioned above prevails 
for a period of five years from the date of removal from office or 
completion of the sentence imposed, however, it may be extended 
for a further five year period if a court believes it is in the interests of 
protecting the public, on application by the Companies Commission.

Exception to the rule

Despite being disqualified, a person may act as a director of a 
private company if all the shares of that company are held by that 
disqualified person alone, and persons related to that disqualified 
person and each such person has consented in writing to that person 
being a director of the company. The Companies Commission is 
empowered to establish and maintain a public register of persons 
that are disqualified from serving as a director, and are subject to an 
order of probation as a director. This register will clearly be cause for 
concern from a human rights perspective.

Board Committees

The directors may appoint any number of board committees it deems 
fit, and delegate any authority to a committee. Unlike the King 
Report, the Bill does not stipulate the types of board committees 
required. Unless limited by the memorandum of incorporation or a 
resolution establishing a committee, a person that  is not a director 
of	the	board	may	be	appointed	to	a	committee;	that	person	is	not	
allowed to vote on a matter and must not fulfill any of the ineligibility 
and disqualification criteria established for directors. Although a 
committee of the board has the full authority of the board in respect 
of the matter referred to it, it must be understood that a board may 
delegate authority but never accountability! 

The drafters have closed the loop of possible uncertainty by further 
providing that the creation of a committee, delegation of any power 
to a committee or action taken by a committee does not alone satisfy 
or constitute compliance by a director with the required duty of a 
director owed to a company.

It is therefore recommended that a board ensure that clearly 
documented mandates are provided to board committees and, 
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e. must not take part in the consideration of the matter except to 
the extent of being requested to disclose observations by the other 
directors

While	the	director	is	required	to	recuse	himself/herself,	he/she	is	to	
be regarded as present for the purposes of constituting a quorum 
and is not to be regarded as being present at the meeting for the 
purpose of determining whether a resolution has sufficient support 
to be adopted and must not execute any document on behalf of the 
company in relation to the matter unless specifically requested or 
directed to do so by the board.

If a director acquires a personal financial interest in an agreement or 
matter in which the company has a material interest or knows that 
a related person has acquired a personal financial interest in such a  
matter, after the agreement or other matter has been approved by the 
company, the director must promptly disclose to the board the nature 
and extent of that interest and the material circumstances relating to 
the director or related person’s acquisition of that interest.

A decision by the board or a transaction or agreement approved by 
the board or company is valid despite any personal financial interest 
of a director or person related to a director if it was approved in the 
manner explained above or has been ratified by an ordinary resolution 
of the shareholders. Any interested person may apply to court to have 
a transaction or agreement approved by the board or shareholders 
declared valid as the case may be, despite the failure of the director to 
satisfy the requirements explained above.

Standards of conduct

The Bill includes a detailed section on the standards of directors’ 
conduct and also  codifies the common law relating to directors’ 
duties. It precludes an abuse of power in that a director must not 
use his position or any information obtained while acting in the 
capacity of director to gain an advantage personally or for another 
person other than the company or a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
company;	or	knowingly	to	cause	harm	to	the	company	or	a	subsidiary	
of the company. Furthermore, the director must communicate to 
the board at the earliest practicable opportunity any information 
that comes to the director’s attention, unless the director reasonably 
believes that the information is immaterial to the company or 
generally	available	to	the	public,	or	is	known	to	the	other	directors;	
or is bound not to disclose that information by a legal or ethical 
obligation of confidentiality. 

Act in the best interests of the Company with the requisite 
care, skill and diligence

A director is required to exercise his powers and perform his functions 
as director in good faith and for proper purpose, in the best interests 
of the company and with the degree of care, skill and diligence 

furthermore, ensure that a proper reporting framework is instituted to 
facilitate reporting by board committees to the board. An overarching 
board charter clearly stating the principles of, and intention behind, 
delegation to board committees would also diminish uncertainty and 
the danger of something falling through the cracks.

Meetings by video conference or web cam?

The Companies Bill promised simplicity, efficiency and convenience, 
and one of the ways in which it is meeting this promise is by allowing 
for the conduct of board meetings by electronic communication or 
for some of the directors to participate in a meeting by electronic 
communication. To every company secretary, the worry of forming a 
quorum for a meeting is always prevalent and this provision is most 
certainly welcomed. The proviso is that the electronic communication 
facility employed ordinarily enables all persons participating in that 
meeting to communicate concurrently with each other without 
an intermediary, and to participate effectively in the meeting. The 
definition of electronic communication relied upon is that which may 
be found in the Electronic Communications and Transactions Act, 
which simply defines electronic communication as ‘communication 
by means of data message’. A data message is further defined as data 
generated, sent, received or stored by electronic means and includes 
voice, where the voice is used in an automated transaction and a 
stored record.

Requirements for notification of and the conduct of board meetings 
are stipulated in the Bill with the option of further or alternate 
requirements being captured in the memorandum of incorporation. 
The Bill also sets out requirements for the drafting of minutes of 
meetings and provides that any minutes of a meeting, or a resolution, 
signed by the chairperson of the meeting, or by the chairperson of 
the next meeting of the board, is evidence of the proceedings of that 
meeting, or adoption of that resolution, as the case may be.

Duty to disclose a conflict of interest

The requirement and process to be followed in respect of disclosure 
of	interest	is	clearly	set	out	in	the	Bill.	In	terms	of	section	75,	if	a	
director of a company has a personal financial interest in respect of a 
matter to be considered by the board, or knows that a related person 
has a personal financial interest in the matter, the director:

a. must disclose the interest and its general nature before the matter 
is	considered	at	the	meeting;

b. must disclose to the meeting any material information relating to 
the	matter,	and	known	to	the	director;

c. may disclose any observations or pertinent insights relating to the 
matter	if	requested	to	do	so	by	the	other	directors;

d. if present at the meeting, must leave the meeting immediately after 
making	the	disclosure;	and	

If a director acquires a personal financial interest in an 
agreement or matter in which the company has a material 

interest or knows that a related person has acquired a 
personal financial interest in such a  matter, after the 
agreement or other matter has been approved by the 

company, the director must promptly disclose to the board 
the nature and extent of that interest.
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that may reasonably be expected of a person carrying out the same 
functions in relation to the company as those carried out by that 
director, and having the general knowledge, skill and experience of 
that director.

 A director would be considered to be acting in the best interests of the 
company with the requisite degree of care, skill and diligence if he had 
taken reasonably diligent steps to become informed about the matter.

He/she	would	also	be	acting	in	the	best	interests	of	the	company	if	
either	he/she	had	no	material	personal	financial	interest	in	the	subject	
matter of the decision and had no reasonable basis to know that any 
related	person	had	a	personal	financial	interest	in	the	matter	or	he/
she		declared	the	interest	in	respect	of	section	75	discussed	above.

Furthermore	he/she	would	be	considered	to	be	exercising	care,	skill	
and	diligence	if	he/she	made	a	decision,	or	supported	a	decision	of	a	
committee or the board, with regard to that matter, and the director 
had a rational basis for believing, and did believe, that the decision 
was in the best interests of the company. A director is entitled to rely 
on the performance of one or more employees of a company whom 
the director reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the 
functions performed or the information, opinions, recommendations, 
reports or statements, including financial statements and other 
financial data, prepared or presented by any of the above persons. 
This reliance is extended to legal counsel, accountants, or other 
professional persons retained by the company, the board or a 
committee as to matters involving skills or expertise that the director 
reasonably believes are matters within the particular person’s 
professional	or	expert	competence;	or	as	to	which	a	particular	person	
merits	confidence;	or	a	committee	of	the	board	of	which	the	director	
is not a member, unless the director has reason to believe that the 
actions of the committee do not merit confidence. The director may 
also rely on the performance of any person to whom the board 
may reasonably have delegated formally or informally by course of 
conduct, the authority or duty to perform one or more of the board’s 
functions that are delegatable under applicable law.

Liability of directors

In terms of this section of the Bill, liability extends to an alternate 
director, prescribed officer or member of a board committee or of the 
audit committee of the board. Interestingly enough, it does not cover 
ex officio directors.

If	a	director	breaches	his/her	fiduciary	duty	(duty	to	disclose	personal	
interests, abuses power, does not act in good faith and for proper 
purpose	in	the	best	interests	of	the	company)	he/she	will	be	liable	for	
any loss, damage or costs sustained by the company as a consequence 
of any breach by the director.

If a director fails to exercise the requisite due care, skill and diligence 
or breaches any other provision of either the Companies Act or the 

features

memorandum	of	incorporation,	he/she	will	be	delictually	liable	for	
any loss, damage or cost sustained by the company as a result of the 
breach.

Broadly speaking, a director will be liable for direct or indirect loss, 
damage or costs sustained by the company if:

a.	he/she	acts	beyond	the	scope	of	his/her	authority;

b.	he/she	allowed	the	company	to	carry	on	business	with	the	
knowledge that it was being conducted recklessly, negligently and 
fraudulently or with the knowledge that the company traded under 
insolvent	circumstances	(see	section	22);

c. being party to an act or omission of the company despite knowing 
that the act or omission was calculated to defraud a creditor, 
employee	or	shareholder	or	had	another	fraudulent	purpose;	

d.	he/she	signed,	consented	to	or	authorised	any	financial	statements,	
prospectus or written statement that is false, misleading or 
untrue. Here the director’s knowledge and the materiality of the 
misrepresentation would be factors for consideration in assessing 
the	liability	of	the	director;

e. failing to vote against or participating in the issue of unauthorised 
shares, the issue of authorised securities, the granting of options, 
the provision of financial assistance, approval of a distribution, 
acquisition by the company of its shares or that of its holding 
company or allotment by the company in contravention of the 
Companies Act.

Liability extends jointly and severally but a director does have at 
his disposal a mechanism to apply to court to set aside a decision 
of	the	board	for	which	he/she	may	be	held	liable.	The	court	has	
the discretion to set aside the decision in whole or in part, and to 
make any further order, for example, rectify the decision, reverse 
a transaction and even indemnify the director for the costs of 
the proceeding. Recovery of loss, damage or costs is limited to a 
prescription period of three years after the act or omission that gave 
rise to that liability.

Section 78 limits the extent to which a company may indemnify a 
director.

The role of a director is very onerous and is to be regarded in a 
positively serious light. Anyone accepting such an appointment must 
at all times ensure that they are fully aware of their rights, duties and 
obligations, and ensure that every question in their mind is answered 
prior to taking a decision. 

Melanie Naidoo, BProc, LLB, is an Admitted Attorney and the Head of 
Legal and Governance, SAICA.
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ne of the best movies ever made 
is “The Dead Poets Society”, 
which stars Robin Williams as an 

inspiring school teacher. I will never forget the 
scene where he takes his students into the 
memorabilia hall decorated with the photos 
of past students. He refers to the photos with 
phrases like: “These boys are now fertilizing 
daffodils” and “we are all food for worms, 
lads.” As an English teacher he instils a sense 
of urgency with his students, so that they are 
encouraged to live their lives with purpose and 
vision. Have you ever had such an experience, 
where you were challenged in a compelling 
way to make the most of your life? 

I had such an experience as a young 
man when I had the privilege to attend a 
leadership conference in Chicago. I can’t 
remember who all the speakers were that 
year, but speakers who usually attend or have 
attended this conference were Jim Collins, 
the late Peter Drucker, Ken Blanchard, John 
Maxwell, some ex- senators from somewhere 
in the US, various business leaders and 
church leaders. But one speaker I remember 
from that year was Bill Hybels. The topic he 
spoke about was self-leadership. It was a new 
concept	to	me,	but	it	was	a	90	minute	talk	
that would change my life. 

Hybels referred to various research studies 
done by business schools and research 
institutes on the topic of self leadership. I 
later did a check on all the research he spoke 
of and that just drove home the concept of 
self-leadership. Since that day, self-leadership 
has become a skill and discipline that has 
provided direction and purpose to my life. 
The fact that Hybels spoke of that astounded 
me most was that all successful leaders in 
all	sectors	spend	50%	or	more	of	their	time	
on self-leadership. I struggled to believe this 
fact, but over time, as I read more about 
leadership, it became quite clear that the 
most effective leaders spend great amounts 
of time on self-leadership. 

But what is self-leadership? Self-leadership 
is the ability to guide yourself towards your 
desired future. As a new generation CA, 
self-leadership is the skill that will serve as 
the ignition towards success. Without self-
leadership you will never attain the future 
that you envisage. Self-leadership starts with 
a high level of self-awareness. How do you 
lead yourself, if you don’t know yourself? 
How do you get to know yourself if you don’t 
spend time by yourself reflecting? How do 
you reflect without asking yourself powerful 
questions? So self-leadership starts with 
reflective questions about yourself that lead 
to greater self-awareness, which then leads 
to the start of self-leadership. 

According to the Harvard Business Review 
(February,	2007),	members	of	the	Stanford	
Graduate School of Business Advisory Council 
were asked to recommend the most important 
capacity for leaders to develop. The results 
were nearly unanimous: the best leaders 
develop self-awareness. They know their 
values and understand what drives them. They 
are willing to accept feedback. They are kept 
on track by honest supporters who surround 
them. These leaders are able to be the same 
person in all aspects of life – at home, at 
work, alone, with friends, or when meeting 
strangers. These leaders are authentic. There is 
nothing phony about them. As a result, they 
have an unusual capacity to inspire, empower 
and guide others.

Good questions to reflect on to develop your 
self-awareness are the following:

• Do I have a clear picture of my desired 
future?  
If you don’t have a vision for your life, 
chances are you will end up where others 
want you to be. Your desired future, 
however, will provide focus.

• Am I still passionate about the work 
that I do?  
Passion provides creativity and 
perseverance. 

• Am I moving closer to my calling?  
Your calling might entail more than 
your career. This is important to explore, 
especially in our country that provides 
great scope for the new generation CA to 
make a difference.

• What are the most prominent emotions 
in my life lately?  
Your emotions provide energy. The word 
“emotion” means energy in motion. 
You need to monitor your emotions to 
determine whether they energize you, or 
drain your energy. 

• Are my psychological wounds 
undermining my performance?  
Bad things happen to good people and 
few understand the impact of bad things 
on their lives. John Maxwell said: “Hurting 
people, hurt other people and are hurt 
easily”. Where in your life do you still need 
to deal with hurt? One of my mentors told 
me that if I don’t deal with my pain, it will 
wait for me. 

• What feedback have I received lately 
from those who are a part of my life?  
Feedback from those around you is crucial 
for your self-awareness. We all have blind 
spots and need those around us to point 
them out. If you get feedback, it would be 
wise to write it down and reflect on it and 
discuss it with a mentor. 

Self-leadership is a skill that will develop 
as you grow in self-awareness. As a new 
generation CA, self-leadership will serve as 
an ignition for your career and calling. Read 
about it and practise it if your desire is to 
make your mark in life. 

Adel du Plessis CA(SA), is an Executive Image 
Consultant, and completed a Masters Degree in 
Accounting Education with a specific focus on 
assessment.
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malltalk with strangers has become eerily predictable for 
me lately. When the conversation turns to my job, I explain 
that I am a teacher at UCT. “What do you teach?” they ask. 

“Accounting”, I reply, “and Ethics”. I’m already cringing at the inevitable 
response: a dramatic pause, followed by a wry smile and “Hmm, I didn’t 
know they go together”.

They are right about at least one thing: until recently, these two fields 
did not go together in the academic curriculum. In the past, a handful 
of accounting students may have elected to take a pure philosophy 
course	in	Ethics,	but	the	vast	majority	qualified	as	CAs(SA)	having	
encountered at most an off-hand, often cynical, comment about 
ethics in a class otherwise focused on developing hard skills.

Financial reporting, management accounting, tax and auditing: those 
are the bread-and-butter of an accounting student’s experience. Your 
average	UCT	student	will	finish	his/her	CTA	having	attended	over	
300	financial	reporting	lectures	alone;	and	this	is	just	barely	enough	
to develop the technical skills required to pass the Final Qualifying 
Exam. And yet, the SAICA Board has “identified skills and integrity as 
the pre-eminent professional attributes of Chartered Accountants”. 
For good reason: Warren Buffett has warned the business world: 
“in looking for people to hire, you look for three qualities: integrity, 
intelligence, and energy. And if they don’t have the first, the other two 
will kill you”. In particular, accounting and auditing are professional 
services that, by their nature, are not sustainable unless the buyer 
perceives the provider to be ethical. Just ask anyone who worked at 
Arthur	Andersen	in	2002.

If integrity is so indispensable, why have we spent so little time 
developing it in the classroom? Perhaps this question is not 
rhetorical;	certainly,	many	of	our	students	begin	the	course	thinking	
that lectures in accounting ethics will not make them more ethical 
accountants. I sometimes feel an overdue pang of sympathy for my 
high school sex education teacher, who had to endure many of the 
same	arguments:	I	know	it	all	already;	it’s	not	something	one	should	
talk	about	in	polite	conversation;	this	is	about	my	feelings,	and	you	
can’t give me better guidance than I can work out for myself.

Generally, however, most of the objections result from a distorted 
view of integrity: this “you’ve either got it or you don’t” fallacy 
claims that there are two kinds of people in this world – good and 
bad – and that there is just nothing we righteous folks can do 
about the immoral brutes out there. I think this is a fundamental 
misunderstanding of human nature, and, candidly, of our own 
personal and professional lives.

You don’t have to be a Christian to accept that none of us is without 
sin.	We	all	have	lied,	cheated	or	stolen	(almost	certainly	all	three)	on	
some level, and, if you deny this, you have just committed the first of 
these	three	(again!).	What	is	more	is	that	this	denial	is	another	integral	
characteristic of the human condition: we all identify ourselves as the 
righteous	folks;	the	immoral	brute	is	always	someone	else.	This	is	just	as	
true for a mafia boss, a bribe-taker, a tax evader or an auditor “sampling 
a sample” as it is for those few whose worst offence was deceiving their 
parents, or abusing someone else’s generosity.
So how can we be sure that we are not deluding ourselves into 
thinking that our actions are morally acceptable, when they are 
not? Perhaps businesses that sell goods or services at inflated prices, 
which the customer will only pay out of necessity, are acting wrongly, 
notwithstanding that it is the norm? Benchmarking banking charges 
in South Africa against international peers make this a tempting 
allegation in that particular sector. 
Perhaps lavish entertainment of current and prospective clients is 
tantamount to bribery, despite that it is common practice for most 
providers of financial services? According to a recent report, at least 
one of our judges considers typical entertainment expenditure to 
be “clear-cut corruption”, saying that such practices “subverted the 
principle of lawful competition and free enterprise”.
How many other business decisions – hiring, firing, outsourcing, 
promotion, expense claims, accounting disclosures, to name but a 
few – have an ethical dimension that, from time to time, people 
following precedent might overlook, however well-meaning they are? 
I fear that, until managers are educated to be aware of the moral 
consequences of their decisions, the answer is “many”.
So recent requirements that accounting students take courses in ethics 
are not intended to stop the J. Arthur Browns of the world, for surely 
only laws and enforcement can stop a serious fraudster. Rather, we teach 
ethics for everybody else, in order to increase their awareness of the ethical 
consequences of their actions, to give them a basis for weighing these 
consequences, and to inspire their moral courage to act on their convictions. 
We won’t ever do away with unethical accountants entirely. But 
people don’t tell jokes about unethical doctors, despite the fact that 
crooked	doctors	exist.	If	99%	of	us	are	conspicuously	committed	to	
doing the right thing, perhaps the accounting profession can win back 
its good name. At the very least, perhaps my smalltalk will become 
less predictable. 
Jimmy Winfield B.Bus.SC, BCom (Hons), PGDA, is a lecturer in the 
Department of Accounting at the University of Cape Town, and runs 
the Cape Business Seminars.
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n 2002 het die SA Reserwe Bank 
die repokoers vier keer verhoog met 
‘n	kumulatiewe	4%	in	‘n	kwessie	van	

nege maande. Die prima rentekoers het vanaf 
13%	na	17%	gestyg,	met	ander	woorde	met	
byna ‘n kwart. 

Maar daar was toentertyd geen resessie nie. 
BBP groei het hoogstens “wind gesluk”, maar 
toe mooi herstel. Waarom dan die bohaai 
nou, waar die Reserwe Bank rentekoerse 
met	5%	laat	styg	het	oor	twee	jaar	en	nou	
waarskynlik einde se kant toe staan?

Die geheim van die situasie is relatiewe groothede. 

In	2001	het	die	Rand	met	oor	die	100%	
verswak	waarna	dit	in	2002	begin	herstel	het.	
Die Rand verswakking het baie produsente ‘n 
groot voordeel besorg, uitvoerders direk en 
invoer-mededinging indirek. 

Inderdaad	het	die	4%	rentekoersstyging	
slegs die Rand se stimulerende uitwerking 
geneutraliseer. Ook het die pyn nie lank 
geduur	nie.	Die	groot	fees	het	in	2003	alreeds	
begin,	met	6.5%	rentekoersdalings.

In kontras lyk dinge huidiglik heel verskillend. 
Die	Rand	was	verlede	jaar	gemiddeld	7.05:$.	
Vanjaar	is	dit	net	10%	swakker.	Produsente	
het dus hierdie keer geen vreugde uit die 
Rand geput nie, veral wanneer aangepas vir 
10%	inflasie.

Die prima rentekoers het egter kumulatief 
met	5%	of	byna	met	die	helfte	vanaf	10.5%	
na	15.5%	gestyg.	Dit	teen	die	agtergrond	van	
‘n	huishoudelike	skuldlas	50%	groter	relatief	
tot	inkome	as	in	2002.	En	baie	van	die	ekstra	
skuld is opgeneem deur nuwe middelklas 
huishoudings met min addisionele bates. Vir 
baie mense is daar hierdie keer niks om op 
terug te val nie. 

Die	inflasieskok	het	ons	in	2002	ook	by	die	
10%	vlak	verby	laat	trek,	net	soos	hierdie	
jaar, selfs al pas ons inflasie aan vir ‘n nuwe 
mandjie gewigte gebaseer op die jongste 
beskikbare bestedingspatrone van verbruikers. 

Maar lone en salarisse in daardie periode het 
nominal vinniger toegeneem as tans. Hierdie 
keer boer sommige verbruikers se koopkrag 
regtig agteruit. Werkgeleentheid gaan vanjaar 

en volgende jaar daal, wat nie toe die geval 
was nie. En huispryse val hierdie keer boonop 
in nominale terme gemeet op ‘n maand 
op vorige maand basis en laat baie mense 
armer voel. Dit was nie destyds die geval nie, 
inderdaad die teenoorgestelde was waar.

So huishoudings is hierdie keer regtig met meer 
as net een slap riem gevang, wat gereflekteer 
word in byvoorbeeld hul verlies aan vertroue, 
die	afname	in	motorverkope	(-42%)	en	die	swak	
kleinhandelverkope in die algemeen.

Maar dit strek verder as net huishoudings. 
Besighede se voorraadvlakke het gestyg, 
aktiwiteitsvlakke in baie sektore het gedaal, 
werkgeleentheid word nou verminder. En 
vertroue ten opsigte van vaste investering 
is laer, veral in die boubedryf, hierdie jaar 
alreeds vir die residensiële sektor as gevolg 
van onbekostigbaarheid, en vanaf volgende 
jaar heel moontlik ook vir kommersiële 
geboue onder andere as gevolg van 
elektrisiteitsprobleme. 

Dit is egter nie alles slegte nuus nie.

Landbou ervaar hierdie keer ‘n bloeitydperk, 
uiteraard ‘n meevaller. Die siviele 
konstruksiebedryf ervaar wonderlike tye as 
gevolg van die groot infrastruktuur programme 
van die owerheid. Enige besigheid wat hierdie 
sektore bedien doen dus relatief goed en sal so 
voortgaan oor die korttermyn. En die staatsdiens 
weet in ieder geval nie wat resessie is nie. Ten 
minste	25%-30%	van	die	ekonomie	doen	dus	
wonderlik en sal wonderlik bly doen.

Maar dit is in die res van die ekonomie waar 
dinge baie lelik lyk en daar toenemend harde 
bene gekou word. 

Dit is waar dit nou werklik broekskeur gaan. 
Werkgeleenthede gaan verlore, en winsgrense 
kom onder druk. jaareindbonuses lyk nie te 
rooskleurig nie, en terwyl verbruikers minder 
optimisties raak moet die gordel stywer 
ingetrek word.

Die woord ‘resessie’ is waarskynlik te sag om te 
beskryf wat werklik aangaan in hierdie deel van 
die ekonomie. Dag het nag geword, sommer so, 
baie skielik. Dit is hoe mense uit talle oorde dit 
beskryf, die uitsonderlike snelheid waarteen die 
situasie verander het, en die omvang van die 
dalings wat waargeneem word.

En nog is dit nie die einde nie, selfs al sou die 
Reserwe Bank nie rentekoerse in Augustus 
verder verhoog nie. Want die April en Junie 
rentekoersverhogings is nog steeds besig om 
deur te suurdeeg in die ekonomie. 

Mense is nog steeds besig om minder optimisties 
te raak, duursame verbruiksaankope en vaste 
investeringsbesluite uit te stel, voorraadvlakke en 
werkgeleenthede te verminder.

Dit hoef uiteindelik nie in ‘n algemene 
resessie, met ander woorde twee of meer 
kwartale van dalende BBP vlakke en 
werkgeleentheid, te ontaard nie.

Maar ten minste die helfte van die ekonomie 
sal dit beslis wel voel en ‘n groot deel 
daarvan sal werklikheid wees. Byvoorbeeld 
die motorhandel en die mark vir meubels, 
huishoudelike toebehore, kleding en 
skoeisel. Ander sektore soos restourante, 
die eiendomsmark, vakansiegeriewe, die 
boubedryf en die mark vir boumateriale gaan 
maar swaar trek oor die korttermyn.

Hierdie keer is die klap groter. En daar is 
geen noemenswaardige Rand daling wat 
baie produsente se inkomste sal kan beskerm 
nie. Hierdie keer is dit inderdaad die ware 
Jacob. ‘n Bielie van ‘n swaarkry vir baie 
huishoudings en besighede. Dit wys ook so 
in vertrouensvlakke wat sterk aan die daal is 
onder die meerderheid van bestuurders en 
huishoudings.

En die ergste moet nog kom in die maande 
vorentoe, selfs al verhoog die Reserwe Bank 
nie rentekoerse verder nie.

Herstel behoort eers volgende jaar een of 
ander tyd sy opwagting te maak. Maar dis 
eers oor heelwat maande. 

Vasbyt. Tyd om gordel in te trek en 
kontantvloei noukeurig dop te hou. En 
onthou dit is altyd op die donkerste voor die 
dag breek. Die son sal weer skyn en die kruin 
van die heuwel sal weer bereik word. 

Cees Bruggemans is hoofekonoom van First 
National Bank. Besoek sy webwerf www.fnb.
co.za/economics en skryf in op sy vrye e-pos 
artikels.

hierdie keer 
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ake it on trust. All will be revealed – in a taxation sense 
I hasten to add. In our fiscal world we are familiar with 
dividend stripping, but what follows is arguably more exotic.

Taxation and avoidance are complementary twins and resistance to 
fiscal burdens has a long and not always dishonourable history. In 
contrast, Revenue officials throughout the world, while taxing us, 
continue to tax their brains and invent new stealth taxes. Without 
doubt, the Scandinavian countries excel in this field, as is evident from 
a recent Organisation for European Co-operation and Development 
report.	The	OECD	report	for	2005	studied	the	overall	tax	burden	as	a	
percentage	of	GDP	in	30	countries.

Sweden, Denmark, Belgium, Norway and Finland were the top five 
countries with the highest burden of taxation. At the bottom of the 
table, perhaps not surprisingly, were the United States of America, 
Japan and Switzerland.

Having laid bare these facts, so to speak, we can move on to some 
of the more exotic duties of tax officials in Oslo in Norway. There is 
a famous club there called Den Blaue Engel	(The	Blue	Angel)	and	I	
am anxious to assure readers that this knowledge was obtained, not 
by nefarious methods, but by reading Henrick Ibsen’s masterpiece 
Peer Gynt, which was later set to music by Grieg. The picaresque play 
explores the virtues, vices and follies common to all mankind as it 
follows the roguish life of a charming but somewhat arrogant young 
man	in	Oslo	in	1875.

130	years	after	Peer	Gynt,	the	Norwegian	tax	officials	made	numerous	
fact-finding visits to the Blue Angel and to its Diamond Go Go Bar. It 
seems that there was no shortage of volunteers for the assignments. 
Subsequently, they demanded arrear VAT of €20	000	from	the	club	
for failing to charge VAT on entrance fees. The club took the matter to 
the Appeal Court which held that striptease, in the manner in which 
it was presented in this case, was a form of dance combined with 
acting, and entrance fees were therefore exempt from VAT. Revenue 
was ordered to pay costs of €19	700	to	the	Club.	While	we	in	South	
Africa	may	complain	about	a	VAT	rate	of	14%,	the	rates	of	VAT	in	the	
Scandinavian	countries	are	all	in	excess	of	20%,	some	as	high	as	25%.

The late Professor Ellison Kahn of Wits University was fond of quoting 
a case in the Johannesburg Magistrates Court in 1976 in which 
he appeared for the defendant pro amico before Mr J L De Villiers. 
The accused was charged with stripping and, in passing sentence, 
the magistrate said that he was taking into account mitigating 
circumstances, namely that the young woman had succumbed to 

the temptation of easy money and that ‘the youthful woman’s body 
withers soon after ripening’. Whatever the merits of the magistrate’s 
compassion or knowledge of physiology, Professor Kahn said that he 
noticed two officials from the Receiver of Revenue’s office scribbling 
furiously in the public gallery. They no doubt were less compassionate 
in pursuing her for tax on her ill-gotten gains.

Digressing for a moment, but still on the subject of physiology, the 
late John Lazarus SC used to tell of a trial in which he appeared, 
before he became a judge, for the defendant against Advocate Eric 
Morris SC. The judge was the late Mr Justice Bresler and it was an 
action for damages arising out of an injury to the plaintiff’s coccyx. 
The trial had several tax implications. The impatient judge, who 
suffered	from	logorrhea	(which,	putting	it	as	politely	as	possible,	
is an excessive flow of words) wanted to know who performed the 
operation. Eric Morris: ‘Dr Rowland Krynauw’. Judge: ‘ But is he not 
the brain surgeon?’ Morris: ‘ Yes, M’Lord but he worked his way up 
from	the	bottom.’	(Collapse	of	Justice	Bresler,	giggling.)	There	were	no	
further interruptions from the Bench.

To return to stealth taxes, tax officials in Estonia have apparently 
introduced a flatulence tax on the gas produced by farmers’ cows. It 
seems	that	every	day	a	cow	produces	350	litres	of	methane	and	1500	
litres of carbon dioxide, which are greenhouse gases linked to global 
warming.	It	is	thought	that	up	to	25%	of	methane	gas	emissions	in	
Estonia is caused by cows.

The idea has apparently been seized upon with alacrity by the Government 
of India, which has a population of about 1 billion people and a similar 
number of cows. Experts in Australia are developing a type of grass that 
will reduce the amount of methane gas that cows expel, while scientists in 
Switzerland have apparently developed a pill that reduces the amount of 
methane	produced	by	cows;	unfortunately,	however	admirable	the	cause,	
they cannot persuade the cows to eat the pills.

Here in South Africa, Eskom has announced that its total annual 
emissions	of	carbon	dioxide	are	about	210	million	tons	–	almost	three	
times that of Sasol. Eskom evidently plans to reduce these hot air 
emissions	by	35%	-	but	only	in	2025.	In	the	meantime,	the	emissions	
will increase.

The last word should be left to the farmers’ spokesman in Estonia who 
apparently said: “The people who invent these kinds of stupid taxes are 
full of wind themselves.” Few would quarrel with that assessment. 

Penelope Webb who for some years worked in industry, is a former tax 
partner of a large international accounting firm.
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corporate overhead costs to be minimised 
relentlessly, is often dependent on the re-
porting lines through to the boardroom. 

So what is the impact of different CRE 
reporting lines within a company and, in 
particular, how does the CRE strategy mes-
sage get time at boardroom discussions?

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

It is unusual for the CEO to take primary 
responsibility for real estate strategy and 
decisions other than in the overall role as the 
leader of the company. In small- to medium-
sized	companies,	the	CEO	(who	may	also	be	
the founder) usu ally has a strong affinity for, 
and love of, real estate. However, in larger 
companies, if the CEO continues to remain 
too close to real estate decisions while not 
focusing on the core business needs, issues 
may emerge. 

Some interesting anecdotes exist with the 
CEO being too involved in the development 
of a great new corporate head office build ing 
while the company itself has continued to 
spiral downward with a dismal performance. 
In other companies where the CEOs are too 
close to real estate, they are often tempted 
to start dabbling in real estate developments 
using the balance sheet and lease covenants 
of the business – often to the detriment of 
the companies.

Chief Financial Officer 

Probably the most frequent reporting struc-
ture is the real estate function reporting 
to the CFO. Obviously, with this reporting 
structure, the key focus of any real estate 

ll businesses need real estate 
to operate from, be it leased or 
owned, large or small, specialised 

or generic. In many businesses real estate 
represents a large, if not the largest, 
component of assets and one of the longest 
term liabilities reflected in the company 
balance sheet. 

However, as most landlords and real es-
tate practitioners have come to realise in 
their negotiations, the real estate decision 
hierarchy and process in companies varies 
dramatically. This variation can be across 
industries, across sectors and particular-
ly across the sizes and maturity levels of 
companies.	The	Corporate	Real	Estate	(CRE)	
responsibility reports through various 
functionalities within differ ent company 
structures to the boardroom.

Today’s business operating environment is 
ever-changing, and common wisdom dic-
tates that businesses need to be agile to 
avoid risks or to pursue new and emerging 
opportunities. But this required agility is 
contrary to the very nature of real estate and 
the way the real estate markets work. By their 
nature, real estate assets are long-term and 
lumpy, whether owned or leased.

It has been suggested that, if business leaders 
approach their real estate require ments 
and commitments innovatively, they can 
provide a competitive advantage. This is a 
different perspective to treating real estate 
commitments merely as corporate encum-
brances and overheads. Whether real estate 
is viewed as key strategy components, or as 

decision will be the impact on the company 
financial statements. Minimising recurrent 
real estate costs and also maintaining 
the optimum company capital structure, 
particularly with the re lease of capital tied up 
in lazy real estate assets, is going to dominate 
the decision-making process. It is likely that 
real estate will at times receive the necessary 
attention in the boardroom, but financial 
considerations such as least cost options 
or capital-releasing lease-backs will hold 
sway over strategic considerations. Detailed 
financial and discounted cash flow analyses 
will form the major decision crite ria.

Real Estate Director

In the recent business cycles, with high growth 
companies displaying voracious appetites for 
acquisitions and accommodation for new 
talent, the need to procure real estate rapidly 
saw the appointment of real estate executives 
to the board. Real estate was finally seen as 
providing a competitive advantage! Real estate 
was suddenly a significant board agenda item 
for all the right reasons. 

Unfortunately, after some spectacular 
crashes, mainly focused in the IT industry, 
this status changed overnight with compa-
nies having to exit significant tranches of 
leases at enormous cost. Real estate again 
became a cost-cutting exercise. Although 
real estate directors are still seen in some 
industries, internationally they tend to have 
reduced levels of influence. 

Human Resources Director

The CRE function reports to the HR direc-
tor in some organisations, although this 
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is a relatively rare company structure. This 
func tional alignment is probably relevant 
in organisations with large groups of 
knowledge workers. The focus tends to be 
on facilities management and the work-
place environment, both from a teamwork 
and productivity perspective, as well as an 
instrument to attract the best talent. Real 
estate decision-making is likely to focus on 
real estate and the workplace as an instru-
ment in the HR armoury with less emphasis 
on the financial analysis. 

Chief Information Officer (CIO) 

With the increased importance and status 
of IT in companies, the CIO has become a 
significant influence in the boardroom. In 
some organisations, particularly where IT 
and real estate are seen as interchangeable, 
the CIO may also have responsibility for real 
estate. Although this functional alignment 
is not frequently evident, it is probably more 
rel evant in IT companies with the focus on 
the workplace as a portal for the IT network.

It is expected that, in this alignment, the real 
estate and workplace systems and da tabases 
will form robust platforms for real estate 
decision-making and performance re porting 
through to the boardroom. 

Director of Corporate Services 

In many companies real estate has found 
a new home with the emergence of 
broad service functions, which may also 
include other cor porate services such as 
information technol ogy, human resources 
and even finance. This structure can result 

in all corporate resources being treated 
equally in support of the corpo rate strategy, 
and receiving a reasonable level of board 
attention. However, in reality, there is 
usually a bias to one of the core disciplines, 
dependent on the background of the person 
that fills the leadership position.

Sales and Marketing Director 

In many retail businesses with a very strong 
focus on marketing and sales growth, the real 
estate function is closely linked to the mar-
keting and sales team. Real estate and loca-
tion is usually the most significant key to the 
sales promotion, market share and business 
growth. This is particularly relevant in high 
growth retail businesses and specifically for 
rolling out new retail franchises. Real estate 
site identification is expected to receive de-
tailed discussions by the directors as a key 
component of continued company growth.

Chief Operating Officer (COO)

In businesses such as manufacturing and 
distribution it is not unusual for the real 
es tate responsibilities to be a direct responsi-
bility of the COO. In these businesses, effec-
tive real estate location and building design 
are critical to productivity and profitability. 
These decisions are usually pivotal to busi-
ness operations and strategy.

Procurement Manager 

The reassignment of real estate decision-
making and management to the procurement 
department is becoming more evident 
internationally. With these functional 
reporting lines, real estate tends to lose its 

status as a strategic resource providing a 
competitive advantage, and is treated as a 
commodity. The decision-making is focused 
on cost. The acquisition process of new 
real estate, whether to be owned or leased, 
revolves around purchasing probity and 
set proce dures. Although these aspects are 
critical for corporate governance purposes, 
the strategic nature of real estate becomes 
neglected and seldom receives significant 
debate in the boardroom, with the directors 
believing that all things real estate are 
governed within the procurement process. 

The decision about whether real estate can 
bring strategic advantage to a company or 
should be treated as a cost to be mini mised 
relentlessly, continues to challenge the minds 
of company leaders. Recent international 
trends have seen a number of large com-
panies, particularly in the financial sector, 
disband real estate groups and reallocate 
the real estate function to the procurement 
department. This is probably a strategy to 
drive down recurrent costs, ensure procure-
ment probity and reduce internal resources. 
The longer-term legacies of these decisions 
are still to be played out into the future. 
With a whole range of reporting lines within 
businesses, the status of real estate in the 
boardroom decision-making is still var ied and 
uncertain. In the meantime, the complexities 
of identifying where the real estate 
responsibility rests within specific companies 
and industry sectors continue to be an 
ongoing challenge for prospective landlords, 
agents and service providers. 

Dave Owen CA(SA), BCom, Dip (Acc), is a 
member of the Coronet Global and Fellow 
Institute of Directors.



Your own Lodge in a 

4000ha Big Five Game 

Reserve with 10km of 

Crocodile River frontage 

within the Greater Kruger 

National Park

Real estate investment tongues are 
abuzz with excitement over the launch 
of freehold title stands in a brand 
new 4000ha Big Five game reserve 
development uniquely perched on 
the southern boundary of the Kruger 
National Park.   This is no sales spin 
because Mjejane Game Reserve not 
only shares an impressive 10 kilometres 
of game-rich Crocodile River frontage 
with the beautiful Biyamiti section of 
the world renowned Kruger National 
Park but, following the recent dropping 
of fences between the two properties,  
is now incorporated within the Greater 
Kruger.  Big game moves freely between 
the Kruger National Park and Mjejane.  
And,  if this in itself is not exciting 
enough,  catch hold of this….a new low 
level bridge is planned to provide direct 
access from Mjejane Game Reserve into 

the Kruger’s own road network.  This 
is all pretty groundbreaking stuff and a 
serious enough reason to explore the 
investment opportunities while they 
last. 

Of relevance to investors is the fact 
that Mjejane Game Reserve is the last 
significant tract of pristine indigenous 
bush adjoining the highly sought after 
southern section of the Kruger.  To put 
it bluntly, in this neck of the woods 
there simply is no more available land 
like it.  This has created an unrivalled  
investment opportunity that can never 
be repaeted.  Furthermore investors will 
find considerable comfort in the fact that 
Mjejane is a fully settled land claim.  It 
is the first joint development of its kind 
with the local Mjejane community who 
invite you to become one of the select 
few to share the magic of this unspoilt 
African wilderness.  
   

The game reserve development plan 
has allowed for freehold title stands for 
residential, recreational and corporate 
use as well as a safari lodge, guesthouse 
and  luxury tented camp.   Architectural 
guidelines have been established to 

ensure an aesthetic development in 
harmony with nature.  

Pre-launch interest in freehold title 
riverfront stands with exceptional views 
over the Crocodile River and Kruger 
National Park has already committed 
in excess of R100 million in value.   
There is,  however,  a whole lot more 
to Mjejane than the stunning riverfront 
alone.  Don’t forget that this reserve 
spans 4000ha of free roaming Big Five 
territory. Stunning game reserve stands 
ranging from 2400 to 10000m²  are being  

Mjejane 

Game Reserve

A unique inheritance 
for future generations
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released in phases with prices currently 
ranging upwards of R790 000 (incl. VAT) 
depending on size and location. As with 
the riverfront stands, these investment 
opportunities will soon be subscribed.       

Imagine rubbing shoulders with the 
Kruger’s big game - herds of buffalo, 
countless elephants, big cats such as lion 
and leopard as well as numerous other 
game and bird species all residing in the 
same environment as yourself.   This has 
to be the epitome of organic soul food 
– something we all desperately need.  
Mjejane Game Reserve is all about 
reconnecting like-minded investors with 
nature in a fulfilling way.  To this extent, 
a 500ha portion of the reserve has been 
set aside for safe walking and mountain 
biking.  

Mjejane Game Reserve is less than 
30 minutes drive from Malelane and 
Crocodile Bridge Gates which makes 
participating in Kruger night drives and  

walking safaris easy holiday options.  
Superb golf courses such as Leopard 
Creek, Malelane Country Club and 
Kambaku in Komatipoort are within 
15 to 30 minutes drive from Mjejane. 
Tiger-fishing is available in the nearby 

Komati River and day visits to Swaziland 
and Mozambique are also within easy 
striking distance. Mjejane Game Reserve 
is only 4 hours drive (N4) from Gauteng. 
Alternatively you can fly directly from 
O.R. Tambo, Durban and Cape Town 
International Airports into Kruger 
Mpumulanga International Airport, a 
mere 45 minutes from Mjejane.   These 
features all combine to make Mjejane 
Game Reserve a highly desirable 
investment proposition that is certain to 
deliver healthy returns into the future.  
Viewing is by appointment only

For further details on real estate 
investments in Mjejane Game Reserve 
call Winchester Marketing toll free on 

0800117622 today. 
Discover this unique inheritance for 

future generations. 
www.winchestermarketing.com

wildthing@winchestermarketing.com

Mjejane Game Reserve is all about 
reconnecting its investors with nature
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ow, I may be biased, but you’d be hard pressed to find a more beautiful city in the 
world. Cape Town and particularly the Atlantic coastline, boast some of the world’s 

loveliest skies, seas and surf. A popular destination for locals and international travellers, 
the area also hosts many sought after hotels and guest houses, but none as spectacular and 
grand as the Ambassador Hotel and Executive Suites in Bantry Bay. 

Built in a sought after area, perched high on the rocks overlooking a magnificent ocean, and 
on the slopes of the famous Lions Head on the Table Mountain range, what more could you 
possibly ask for in terms of a winning and relaxing view?

Well,	if	like	me,	you’re	a	particularly	discerning	(some	may	say	finicky)	traveller,	
and spectacular views can be grossly overshadowed by lousy service, and 3-star 
accommodation	in	a	5-star	hotel,	then	this	hotels	definitely	will	not	disappoint.	

From the moment you enter the hotel, the staff are pleasant and inviting. The décor is 
modern, and very reflective of the architecture of the area. From every possible vantage 
point in the hotel, the wide expanse of the ocean feels like a touch away, and the fact 
that the swimming pool is mere meters away from the mountain rocks, gives you the 
impression that you’re truly living life la dolce vita. 

Once you’re ushered to your room, the experience is already just breathtaking. The views, 
the simple luxury of the ‘little’ things like attention to detail, and the sheer opulence of 
the bed linen and the pure creature comforts of hotel living draws you in and promises 
to only leave you long after your stay. 

Then when you join other guest in the dining area of the Salt restaurant, the 
experience comes full circle as practically anything you pick off the menu is bound to 
serve up something particularly unique to Cape Town dining. 

Overall, the hotel ranks very highly. The location, view, ambience of the rooms, 
and communal areas, are simply delightful. In addition the Ambassador also offers 
contemporary 1 and 2 bedroomed fully-equipped and fully-serviced Executive Suites, 
that are perfect for traveling families, long stays and self-catering holidays or for 
those re-locating to South Africa.

Full hotel services are available for guests booking the Executive Suites. All suites 
have fully-fitted kitchens and are equipped with the necessary utensils for a ‘home 
away from home’ stay. For in-room entertainment, each suite is fitted with a DVD 
player and a full library of DVD’s are available. 

Some facilities available: outdoor swimming pool, secure parking and valet services, 
complimentary daily shuttle services to and from V&A waterfront, same day 
laundry	and	dry	cleaning	services,	24-hour	room	service,	satellite	service	in	rooms,	
Complimentary wireless internet access, travel consultancy, secretarial services, 
fleet of luxury sedans for airport and city and restaurant transfers, conferencing 
facilities, and executive suites shopping services.  

Recreational options nearby: tennis courts, golf, gym & squash facilities, hair & nail 
salon,	hiking,	and	yatching/boating/surfing.	

Contact: 
Toll free reservations:	0800	604	604 
Salt Restaurant & Bar: Email: salt@ambassador.co.za 
Website: www.ambassador..co.za

Overall Star Rating:	5	

Salt Restaurant Rating: 5	-	simple,	easy-dining	atmosphere,	complemented	by	an	
extensive	wine	list	of	70	wines,	all	available	by	the	glass.	

N

44 [ October 2008 ]

executive getaways



he frenetic pace of city life can often drive one just a little insane, so the promise of 
some peace and quiet of the Magaliesberg is often very tempting for those of us in 

much need of trees and slow flowing rivers. While the drive into the Magaliesberg area is not 
that welcoming for someone accustomed to the ease and beauty of Cape travelling, the end 

of the journey proves remarkably tranquil. 

Budmarsh, the instant you past the cows grazing on the field directly before the entrance, 
immediately promises to seduce you with the quiet ambience you’d expect from any 

countryside lodge or guest house that boasts its own slow flowing river ramble. An usher 
waits on you from the moment you exist your car, to the minute you close your room 
door. Styled in modern countryside décor, with large windows and plush sofa’s in the 

lounge area, the lodge also richly displays coffee table books for every taste, from political 
biographies to the sweet tastes and vibrant life of authentic Soweto culture and food. 

But before you experience that part of your stay, a waiter serves you with a hot hand 
towel on entry, a complimentary drink and as little checking-in hassles as possible. 

The views from the main lounge area are exquisite - landscaped gardens, enchanting 
trees, magnificent scenery and sweeping views of the Magaliesberg Mountains. 

And the rooms are absolutely indulgent. Soft white linen, antique furniture, and an en 
suite bathroom to hibernate in. 

The entire experience at Budmarsh is aimed at relaxing your soul, and giving back that 
which a hectic city life ultimately takes from you. 

Rooms: Each room has underfloor heating, heated towel racks, is individually 
designed and decorated,and offers guests fireplaces to outdoor showers and 

jacuzzzi’s. 

Special Moments: Private outdoor massage therapy sessions

Some facilities available: outdoor swimming pool, conference facilities, library, bar 
area, wine cellar, lounge area with great fireplace. It’s also known quite popular as a 

wedding venue. 

Recreational options nearby: Horse riding, game drives, micro lighting, hot air 
ballooning,	(all	on	request),	swimming,	hikes,	bird	watching,	mountain	biking,	picnics	

and billiards. 

Contact: 
Reservations:	+27	11	728	1800 

Email: info@budmarsh.co.za 
Website: www.budmarsh.co.za

Overall Star Rating:	4

Restaurant Rating:	5	–	The	Master	chef,	a	member	of	the	 
Chaîne	des	Rôtisseurs,	serves	a	delectable	5-course	sit	down	meal.	
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Auditing opportunities in New Zealand
Are you looking for:
• a relaxed and safe lifestyle?
• a great place to raise your family?
• strong career opportunities and job security?
• a competitive salary package?
• relocation assistance and help settling into life in a new country?

In early November 2008, Audit New Zealand is coming to South Africa to meet 
with people interested in relocating to our beautiful country to further their career.  
We’ll be visiting a number of cities conducting interviews and information sessions.

If you have a CA qualification, and at least one year’s post-qualification experience, we’ve 
got a lot to offer you at the Supervisor, Manager, or Director level. To be a good fit for our 
organisation, you will have a proven record of making a difference to your clients and 
audit teams in a challenging environment, and possess both team and leadership skills.

We offer very competitive remuneration and also have generous relocation packages 
to help make your move to New Zealand as simple as possible. We also have fellow  
South African staff members in place to help facilitate a “soft landing” for you and your 
family. Don’t worry, you won’t be the only Springboks fan around here!

We’ve created a special section on our website just for you. Visit www.auditnz.govt.nz  
and check out the South African recruitment area. Hopefully you’ll find answers 
to all of your questions, and if not, just ask. If you’d like to meet with us between  
29 October and 10 November, please email us your CV at recruitment@auditnz.govt.nz  
We look forward to seeing you soon.

Opportunity
Respect

Values

Growth

Integrity

Lifestyle
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careers
I  CLASSIFIEDS  I

APPOINTMENTS

ACCOUNTANT (HALF-DAY) 
Manufacturing business requires an 
experienced Financial Manager to oversee the 
accounting function and deal with day-to-
day financial management issues. Reporting 
to the FD, the position would be responsible 
for the management of bookkeeping staff, 
production of management accounts and 
management pack, day to day payments 
processing, all statutory returns, etc. Salary 
Negotiable on experience and qualifications. 
Email CV’s to jobs@cobraprojects.com or fax 
to	086	636	0158.

ARTICLE CLERKS 
Article clerks required at all levels. If you 
believe it is time for a change, you are 
welcome to talk to us. Medium-size auditing 
firm situated through Gauteng and Cape 
Town. E-mail CV to: marium@mbainc.co.za.

AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS 
Three teams of Caseware Audit clerks for 
audit assignments. Each team supervised by 
audit manager Rory de Vos BCompt UNISA 
(CFA)SA.	Contact	Rory	on	083	701	6429	or	on	
Selby	083	984	6730.

AUDIT STAFF – CAPE TOWN 
Career opportunities at Medium-sized 
to Large International CA firms. Market-
related salary packages commensurate 
with experience and qualifications to Audit 
Managers/Supervisors/Seniors	with	BCom	
(Hons)	and/or	CA(SA)	and	completed	articles.	
Call	Roslyn	021	686	0611	or	email	ros@
smilers.co.za see www.smilers.co.za for more 
information.

AUDIT STAFF REQUIRED. 
LUCRO AUDITING Fourways is growing 
rapidly and seeks professional staff at all 
levels:	BCom’s/Articles/CAs(SA).	Extroverted,	
type A personalities with a passion for 
auditing and business. Self motivated and 
ability to motivate subordinates and liaise 
with clients. We offer: A market related 
salary	(incl.	Med	Aid)	+	annual	bonus	+	
productivity	bonuses	+	target	incentives;	
extensive	training	and	fast	track	promotions;	
an up market and dynamic work environment 
conducive to growth and learning. Email CV 
to: jobs@lucro.co.za. Visit www.LucroCPA.co.za.

AUDIT STAFF & AUDIT MANAGERS 
REQUIRED  
Vexillum Auditors Incorporated, a well 
established audit, tax and management 
advisory firm with offices in Johannesburg, 
Pretoria and internationally requires audit 
staff at all levels as well as audit managers to 
pursue an exciting and dynamic career with 
us, including excellent medium to long term 
progression across all our divisions. Please 
e-mail CV to HR@vexillum.co.za. 

AUDIT MANAGER/SUPERVISOR 
You have completed or are completing 
your articles and wish to pursue a career 
as	a	CA(SA),	RA	in	public	practice.	For	an	
excellent career advancement opportunity, 
with the ultimate aim to become a partner, 
your first call must be to us: Mervitz & Malan 
Chartered Accountants Inc. is a medium  
sized audit firm and professional 
accountancy and business services provider 
located in Brooklyn, Pretoria. Contact  
willie.botha@mervitzmalan.co.za or tel  
(012)	346-3044.	Visit	our	website	at	 
www.mervitzmalan.co.za.

CAP Chartered Accountants ‘n gevestigde 
firma in Durbanville – Kaapstad, het 
beskikbare poste vir leerlingrekenmeesters, 
ouditbestuurders en rekeningkundige 
personeel. Ons bied mededingende salarisse, 
‘n tegnologies gevorderde en stimulerende 
omgewing en loopbaangeleenthede.  
www.chartered.co.za	Faks	CV	na	(021)	9147738	
of e-mail aan cv@chartered.co.za.

CAREERS IN EUROPE 
Several Global Auditing-and Accounting 
Outsourcing firms are currently recruiting 
South African accountants and Auditors 
for their Offices in EUROPE. Competitive 
market related salaries, long term career 
opportunities and work visas are offered. 
Submit detailed CV and contact details 
urgently to Europe@glue-recruit.nl 
Interviews to be conducted in SA.

DYNAMIC ACCOUNTING and audit practice 
in JHB requires clerks at all levels. Excellent 
remuneration and working conditions as well 
as great prospects for advancement. Articles 
are available if required. Please email a 2 
page CV to david@dkalmin.co.za.

FINANCIAL MANAGER BLOEMFONTEIN 
CA(SA)	with	3	years	financial	management	
experience in manufacturing section. Tax 
Law Qualification. Salary negotiable. Must be 
able to commence work within short notice 
period. Email CV to ceoi@iclix.co.za.

JUNIOR AUDIT PARTNER 
Medium-sized firm in Jhb North seeks junior 
audit	partner.	Must	be:	min	30yrs;	recent	
audit	experience;	resident	in	Jhb	North.	We	
offer:	market	related	salary;	plus	benefits,	
bonuses	and	incentives;	flexible	work	hours	
(half-day);	dynamic	work	environment	all	
conducive to a preferred lifestyle. Email CV to 
dynanet@webmail.co.za.

TRAINEE ACCOUNTANTS AND AUDIT 
SENIORS 
A Sandton based dynamic, medium-sized 
accounting firm with an international 
affiliation is looking for motivated, energetic 
individuals, with their own transportation 
to join our growing practice. We provide 
excellent training, a diverse range of clientele 
as well as very competitive salaries. As a 
SAICA accredited training office, we also 
offer training contracts to individuals who 
are	passionate	about	becoming	CAs(SA).	If	
you fit this description, please send your CV 
to us at shamoliad@tuffsan.co.za.

TRAINEE ACCOUNTANT 
Midrand firm of Chartered Accountants has 
vacancies for ambitious persons wishing to 
commence or to continue their training as 
a trainee accountant with a dynamic firm. 
Applicants must be studying towards a 
BCompt degree or equivalent with the goal 
of	obtaining	their	CA(SA).	Own	transport	
essential. Remuneration very competitive and 
ample study leave allowed. Correspond with 
The	Staff	partner	at	P	O	Box	4240,	Halfway	
House,	1685	or	by	fax	086	6124	425.

TRAINEE ACCOUNTANTS  
Dynamic, Northcliff based firm of Chartered 
Accountants and Auditors has vacancies 
for all levels of trainee accountants with 
Caseware experience. Please forward CV to 
the Staff Partner at johanc@arcinc.co.za or 
0866	309	321.

TRAINEE ACCOUNTANTS 
Established	audit/Accountancy	Practice	

Closing Date for Advertisements: Please note that all adverts should be submitted to this office in 
writing two months prior to publication date. 

Important Information: A telephone number, contact name and postal address must be included 
with any advert submitted and in the event that payment is not made before the closing date the 
advert will not be published. 

Legislation requires your VAT Registration number for invoicing purposes. 

For Classified Advertisement information:	Contact	Angel	Lelosa	Tel:	011	621-6696.	
All advertisements to be submitted to: Accountancy	SA,	PO	Box	59875,	Kengray,	2100,	Fax	011	
621-6807	or	Email:	classifieds@saica.co.za 
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Specialists in Permanent and Flexible Accounting
Financial Appointments and Assignments

Website: www.a-o-c.co.za  E-mail: cv@a-o-c.co.za

Johannesburg Tel: (011) 269 8700 Fax: (011) 269 8716
Pretoria Tel: (012) 346 3721 Fax: (012) 346 5965
Cape Town Tel: (021) 442 4379 Fax: (021) 447 9139
Port Elizabeth Tel: (041) 363 2404 Fax: (041) 363 9078

PROFIT WITH THE PROFESSIONALS

Senior Managers - CA (SA)
North  R900K - R450K

Prominent public accountants and auditors require
analytical and solution driven CAs to manage diverse
client portfolios and maintain sound client
relationships. Must have sound interpersonal skills
and management ability and be keen to contribute
to the development of staff. Specialist industry
knowledge of IFRS advantageous. Contact
Keshantha, (011) 269 8875.

Financial Manager
Midrand  R700K - R550K

A growing concern in the rental industry seeks a
motivated and driven individual to take on a
challenging financial management role.
Responsibilities include implementation of policies
and procedures, full financial management function
and operational management.  This opportunity is
best suited to an individual with a solid track record
in managing staff. Contact Kim, (011) 269 8700.

Senior Cost Accountant
Sandton  R700K - R500K plus bonus

Rapidly growing investment bank seeks CA (SA) to
report and analyse costs, prepare cost budgeting and
forecasting, deal with cost hedging, and design cost
containment strategies. Should have keen interest
in financial markets and thorough understanding of
the trading business and products. Contact Annerle,
(011) 269 8700.

Financial Manager CA (SA)
Sandton  R600K - R520K

Highly regarded organisation seeks a dynamic go-
getter with BCom/CTA/CA (SA) qualification,
complemented by budgeting and reporting
experience. Knowledge of GAAP, IFRS, SAAS report-
writing skills, management accounting, and financial
management could secure an interview. Preference
given to E/E candidates. Contact Cindy, (011) 269
8700.

Financial Accountant
Rosebank  R600K - R500K

Leading financial institution seeks recently qualified
CA (SA). Reporting to the Financial Director, you will
assist in financial and management accounting
functions. The key attributes required to secure this
role include a solid academic background and an
enthusiastic approach to a career in finance and
operations. Contact Karen, (011) 269 8767.

Financial/Management Acc
Sandton  R580K - R400K CTC

Engineering firm, part of a listed group and involved
in various projects across South Africa, require a self-
starter to deal with management accounts, financial
reports, reconciliations, statements and tax. You will
interact at executive level only. Minimum BCom with
5-8 years corporate company experience required.
Exceptional growth opportunity. Contact Natasha,
(011) 269 8700.

situated in Pretoria offers vacancies for Trainee 
Accountants. Only applicants studying towards 
BCom degree will be considered. Forward CV 
to Charmaine_w@telkomsa.net. 

SA TO BERMUDA RECRUITMENT AGENCY 
An exciting opportunity to earn tax-free US 
dollars awaits qualified accountants looking 
for international experience. Bermuda is 
rated as one of the world’s most beautiful 
islands and is also a major offshore insurance 
and investment centre. Local agency is run by 
a South African CA with extensive personal 
experience of living and working in Bermuda. 
Interested? Visit www.satobermuda.com for 
more information.

TRAINEE ACCOUNTANTS – PRETORIA 
Well established medium-size firm of 
Chartered Accountants situated in Brooklyn 
Pretoria offering excellent training, has 
vacancies for 1st year trainees from January 
2009.	Fax	your	CV	to	012-	346	5599	or	
e-mail to kotie@mvv.co.za.

TRAINEE ACCOUNTANTS – 2008/9 –  
CAPE TOWN 
Career opportunities at Medium-sized to Large 
International CA Firms. You MUST have a BCom 
Acc/BTech	Accounting	Degree,	be	studying	
towards	Honours/CTA	to	qualify	as	a	CA(SA).	
Please	call	Roslyn	021	686	0611	or	email	ros@
smilers.co.za, see www.smilers.co.za for  
more information.

PARTERSHIPS & PRACTICES

AUDIT MANAGER / PARTNER DESIGNATE 
CAPE TOWN 
Small Audit and Accounting Practice in 
Southern Suburbs Cape Town seeks young 
CA to take over varied audit and accounting 
portfolio from partners wishing to retire in 
near future. Suit person with a small fee 
base or another local firm wishing to expand. 
Contact anoli@iafrica.com	or	082	498	2999.	

BEE PARTNER 
Old established seven partner firm in Sandton 
wishes to offer a partnership to a suitably 
qualified chartered accountant. Established 
client portfolio would be an added advantage 
but by no means essential. Reply to  
R	Kinross,	PO	Box	2506,	Rivonia,	2128,	or	
email: richardk@tuffsan.co.za.

MERGING 
Interested in merging with a well established 
successful accounting and auditing firm in 
Gauteng and Cape Town. Lets talk about the 
possibility and opportunities. Call Marius at 
082	887	3496.

MERGERS/FEE BASE PURCAHSE 
Well established accounting, audit, tax and 

advisory	firm	seeking	merger	opportunities/	
fee bases for sale in the Johannesburg, 
Pretoria, Cape Town and Durban areas.  
For a confidential discussion, please call 
Fabrizio	on	083	442	7744	or	e-mail	 
faldrighetti@vexillum.co.za.

MERGER OPPORTUNITY  
An up market, dynamic and successful 
medium-sized audit and accounting 
practice in Jhb North is interested in 
discussing merger opportunities with 
other similar practices. We seek mutually 
beneficial associations that provide a win-
win scenario to all parties. If interested 
then contact postbox2010@gmail.com 
– all correspondence will be kept strictly 
confidential.

MERGE 
Dynamic 3 partner audit firm in Tyger Valley 
wishes to merge with sole practitioner with 
strong ethical values and well established 
and diverse client portfolio.  Please reply to 
Emmerentia at , pa@chartered.co.za

TAKE OVER 
Well established successful CA firm wishes 
to take over accounting and auditing firms 
(Gauteng	and	Cape	Town	only).	If	you	are	
interested	in	selling,	call	Marius	at	082	887	3496.

PRODUCTS

CYBERSAFE 
CYBERSAFE Add value to your clients 
and reduce your admin by storing client 
documents online and giving them access 
www.cybersafe.co.za CYBERSAFE can be 
whitelabeled so that your logo and details 
display when your clients login.

SERVICES

COMPANIES & CC’S  
Shelf companies. Company and CC name 
reservations, registrations, lodgements, special 
resolutions and searches. Restoration of 
deregistered companies and CC’s. Publication 
of notices in Government Gazette.

HENZEL SERVICES (PTY) LTD  
Tel	(012)320-7230	services@henzel.co.za.

HORWATH LUBBES CORPORATE SERVICES 
(PTY) LTD 
Secretarial and corporate services. Lodgement 
of annual returns. Incorporation of companies, 
CC’s and Trusts. Shelf companies and CC’s. 
Lodgement of all statutory documents and 
compliance.	Tel:	(012)	348	6335	Fax:	 
(012)	348	6384,	info@horwathpta.co.za  
Docex	222	Pretoria.	P	O	Box	1353	 
Pretoria	0001.
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Client Consultant

Cordelia Madanire
Client Consultant

Karen Oosthuyse
A.C.I.S.

Candidate Consultant

Michele Deeks
BA Hons (Psych)

Candidate Consultant

Angus du Plessis
Temp Division

Carl Williamson
B.Comm

Client Consultant
Durban

Ian Shortreed
CA (SA)

Candidate Consultant

Judy Markwell
Client Consultant

Cape Town

Gladwin Barns
Temp Division

Tumi Mache 
Temp Division

Paul Jacka
Director

Jenny Davies
Client Consultant

Camilla Barlow
Client Consultant

THIS MONTH’S TOP FINANCIAL OPPORTUNITIES

FINANCIAL MANAGER - JHB
R550 000 plus excellent bonus

Growing business and division of listed group, require a hands-on financial
manager with good people management skills to handle full financial
function. Focus on improvement of systems, staff morale, stock, and IT
upgrade. Will suit high energy, enthusiastic young CA (SA) with minimum 3
years’ post article experience. Contact michele@frontlinesolutions.co.za

If you are seriously considering a career move out of the auditing profession
into a commercial/business environment within the next 12 months, come
and talk to us about the various options open to you. We can assist you in
finding a suitable position in line with your personal vision and objectives,
including a competitive package starting at around R420k, exclusive of
performance based incentives. Don't delay. Act now and let us facilitate
your career path development into the future. 
Contact ian@frontlinesolutions.co.za (Johannesburg)
Contact helen@frontlinesolutions.co.za (Cape Town)
Contact carl@frontlinesolutions.co.za (Durban)

CA (SA) with 3 years’ post qualifying experience to handle wide array of
business and accounting tasks. Preparing and analysing all financial
information for this dynamic young company, which is a subsidiary of a
listed entity. Requirements include strong analytical and numerical
aptitude, solid managerial/entrepreneurial skills and the ability to work
independently as well as interact with people at all levels. 
Contact gills@frontlinesolutions.co.za

FINANCIAL MANAGER - EAST RAND 
R520 000 - R620 000 plus performance bonus

Gill Smith
Client Consultant

Nathenia Watson
Client Consultant

Helen Nikiforakis
Candidate Consultant

Cape Town

Graham Burnside
Director

F R O N T L I N E
TARGETED RECRUITMENT SOLUTIONS

FINANCIAL MANAGER - JHB 
R650 000 - R700 000 

CA (SA) or Part 1 with 1-2 years’ commercial exp preferably within a
corporate environment. This blue chip group, considered to be a preferred
employer, has opportunities for pro-active, high energy, driven candidates
to add value to your career within the Africa Division. Ability to travel,
troubleshoot projects, liaise with the territories, carry out full financial
function incorporating variance analysis, cash flows, ratio's and packs.
Exposure to SAP an advantage. Contact jenny@frontlinesolutions.co.za

MANAGEMENT / LIAISON ACCOUNTANT - JHB
R600 000 plus incentive bonus

Reporting to the MD, this senior level position calls for a CA (SA) with
strong operational experience in a manufacturing/contracting environ-
ment. As part of the management team, be responsible for control of
accounting, preparation of management and official reports, analysis of
projects with underperforming margins, work in progress/job costings and
participation in strategic company decisions. Implementation of a new ERP
system is currently in progress, you will be actively involved with further
development of the system. Contact helen@frontlinesolutions.co.za

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER - CAPE TOWN 
R750 000 neg 

Our client seeks a young CA (SA) with one to two years’ experience in
commerce. Reporting to the General Manager you will be responsible for
leading the accounting team and full financial management function. This
will include monthly management pack, budgets, tax related issues, annual
audit and day to day running of the business. 
Contact helen@frontlinesolutions.co.za

GROUP FINANCIAL MANAGER - CAPE TOWN 
R420 000 - R450 000 

NEWLY QUALIFIED/SOON TO QUALIFY CA'S
WHERE DO YOU WANT TO BE IN 2009/2010?

Successful listed company seeks a newly/recently qualified CA (SA) to join
its finance team. The role would be varied and challenging and includes,
project accounting, financial management, management accounting and
tax. They will offer you a career path second to none!
Contact karen@frontlinesolutions.co.za

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT - SANDTON
R430k - R480K plus performance bonus

Looking for a CA (SA) with 2 to 3 years’ commercial experience within a
listed group. Superb career opportunity to take up a hands-on role in a
growing, demanding and challenging environment. You should be a results
driven excellent communicator with staff management experience.
Contact karen@frontlinesolutions.co.za

FINANCIAL DIRECTOR - JHB 
R650 000 plus bonus  

CA (SA) or BCom Hons plus articles and 3 yrs’ plus experience in a
manufacturing environment to handle the finance of this division of well
performing listed group. Ideal candidate will have strong interpersonal
skills, a passion for their work, not be purely finance focused, but able to
give hands-on involvement and commercial input into the business. 
Contact michele@frontlinesolutions.co.za 

Division of the Kelly Group Limited

We have opened our Frontline/A-O-C offices in Umhlanga servicing the KZN region for permanent
and temporary staff. Please contact Carl Williamson (carl@frontlinesolutions.co.za) 082 461 2925.

Office Number: (031) 566-3833.

Parc Nicol Office Park, 3001 William Nicol Drive, Bryanston, tel: (011) 706-9222
58 Loop Street, Hicastle House, Cape Town, tel: (021) 424-3042

2nd Floor, Total Garage Building, Gateway Autocity, Jubilee Grove, Umhlanga.
Website: www.frontlinesolutions.co.za
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www.mydeparturelounge.com.au

My Departure Lounge is an executive search �rm headquartered in Sydney, Australia. As a company that’s run by Australian and South 
African Chartered Accountants, we specialise in cross border search for Chartered Accountants currently operating in the professional 
services environment.

Under the leadership of Greg Haskins and Tammy Frame, both previously Directors at Deloitte, My Departure Lounge has a proven track 
record helping South African candidates �nd the right opportunity in Australia and New Zealand – which includes visa sponsorship and 
generous relocation packages. We represent a variety of �rms, each of which o�er something di�erent based on industry specialisation, 
growth strategy and people culture.

We are currently seeking applications from Audit Partners, Directors, Senior Managers and Managers for roles in Australia and New 
Zealand starting in 2009. Tammy is currently based in our Johannesburg o�ce, and will be hosting a selection of our Australian clients 
for interviews during October and November 2008.

If you’re interested in meeting for a con�dential, face to face chat or to �nd out more about our  
October/November interviews, please contact Tammy Frame in our Johannesburg o�ce. 

Phone: +27 11 258 8694   Mobile: +27 71 375 2452
Email: ozjobs@mydeparturelounge.com.au

Sydney  •  Johannesburg

Exclusive opportunity for world class Audit Partners,

     Senior Managers and Managers

MDL ASA advert.indd   1 18/8/08   12:41:49 PM



Looking for a 
new challenging 
career?

At PricewaterhouseCoopers we can help to expand your career and your horizons.

© 2008 PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. All rights reserved. PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the network of member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, 
each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

PricewaterhouseCoopers is the recognised global market leader for tax 
services. With over 200 professionals in our flagship practice nationally, 
supported by a global network in over 148 countries, we specialise in all 
forms of tax and regulations.

As a result of our continuous growth we are looking for enthusiastic and 
solution based tax professionals to join our leading practice.

Contact us now and experience for yourself how we grow our people 
through our business.

Visit www.pwc.com/za/careers or contact nina.basson@za.pwc.com 
or moeneeba.isaacs@za.pwc.com
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Composite
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Duties: Will be responsible for preparing trial balance, book entries, bank 
reconciliation, journal and ledger posting. The Incumbent will reconcile 
creditors and debtors. Clear invoices for payment and draft financial 
statements according to IFRS.

recruitment@oasiscrescent.com

Requirement: B.Com Finance / Accounting with completed Articles. 
Minimum of 2 years experience in Accounting. Excellent Academic 
Track Record. Good written and verbal communication skills. Attention 
to detail. Applicants should have Advanced Microsoft Excel skills and 
knowledge of Pastel Software.

The Oasis Group is a Global Asset Management business based in Cape 
Town with offices in Durban, Johannesburg, Dublin, and Dubai. We are 
looking to recruit Accountants to be based at our Cape Town office.

Location: Cape Town.  

Remuneration: Market Related Cost to Company 

How to apply: Please email CV, Identity Document and Academic 
Transcripts to recruitment@oasiscrescent.com.
 
Or post hard copies to Recruitment P O Box 1217 Cape Town 8000 or 
call HR on 021-4137860. You will be contacted if you are short listed. 

Invest in a long term career at Oasis

Accountant



Is your preferred work environment one where:

� Innovation is encouraged
� Specialist skills are valued and utilised
� Enthusiasm for challenges is recognised
� Entrepreneurial spirit is challenged

Is your passion and vision driven by success in any of the
following fields:

� IT Project Advisory
� IT Governance and Performance
� ERP System Advisory
� IT Auditing
� Information Security, Privacy and Continuity

If yes, then KPMG’s IT Advisory practice invites you to
explore unique career prospects with us.

We need many dynamic professionals in our
Johannesburg, Pretoria, CapeTown and Durban offices
to complement our successful, growing team of over
250 people.

A university degree is a minimum requirement, as well
as any of the following:

� CA(SA)
� CISA
� CISSP
� CISM
� PMP
� ITIL
� PRINCE2

A minimum of three years in a consulting or advisory
position is also a requirement.

e-Mail your detailed CV to careers@kpmg.co.za before
17 October 2008.

We are an equal opportunity employer and value diversity
in our people.

At KPMG we lead by example, work together, respect
individuals, seek the facts and provide insight and are open
and honest in our communication, we are committed to
our communities, and above all we act with integrity.

© 2008 KPMG Services (Proprietary) Limited, a South African company and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss
cooperative. All rights reserved.

Information
Innovation
Insight

Opportunities at KPMG in IT Advisory www.kpmg.co.za
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  INTERNAL AUDITOR

  R500 000 - R370 000 CTC, Auckland Park
Successful, well established organization requires efficient, organized & analytical 
indiv for snr IA role. This is a new pos that req a self-starter with loads of initiative.  
BComm + min 5yrs IA exp.  carmen@wexford.co.za
 

  B COMM ARTICLES

  R360 000 - R300 000 CTC, Midrand
A multinational company seeks bright, astute individual to fulfill financial role.  This 
is a challenging opp for an ambitious individual who has recently completed articles 
to gain exp in a variety of accounting functions.  Completed BComm, articles + good 
ppl skills a must.  angelique@wexford.co.za

  CORPORATE ACCOUNTANT

  R450 000 CTC, Midrand
Internat manuf giant req newly qualified CA(SA).  Great opportunity to join a 
motivated, professional team in a company that offers ample career and personal 
growth potential.  The successful candidate will be resp for the full acc func & staff 
superv.  carmen@wexford.co.za  
 

  FINANCIAL MANAGER

  R420 000 - R360 000 + Bonus, Sandton
Well established market leader in the fin serv industry req a newly qualified CA(SA).  
This is a full accounting function that requires committed, “hands on” individual with 
good people skills to lead the accounts department.  perm@wexford.co.za

  SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

  R320 000 - R300 000, Sandton
Top IT company requires full function accountant with tremendous drive and 
initiative for their growing department.  BComm essential.  Min 3 yrs Commercial 
experience.  perm@wexford.co.za

  SENIOR FINANCIAL MANAGER

  R850 000 CTC + Incentive Bonus, Kempton Park
Construction giant req results driven, proactive, assertive and commercially astute 
CA(SA) to be part of dynamic management team.  Report to MD.  Communicate 
financial results to management on a monthly basis to enable the appraisal of Co’s 
actual performance against targets.  Develop, implement and modify fin policies and 
procedures.  CA(SA) and solid FM exp essen.  janet@wexford.co.za

  FINANCIAL CONTROLLER

  R480 000 CTC, North
Medium sized concern req newly qualified CA(SA) to join this fast paced, 
entrepreneurial grp.  Be part of mgmnt team offering technical and strategic input at 
exec meetings.  Growth to FD position offered for above average candidate.  CA(SA) 
or Part 1 essen.  janet@wexford.co.za

Tel: +27 11 785 4930    Fax: +27 11 785 4939   www.wexford.co.za
Three Seasons Office Park, 7 Spring Street, Rivonia, 2128

  FINANCIAL MANAGER

  R480 000 - R420 000 CTC, East Rand
Financial Manager required by listed group to report to the FD. Take on full 
responsibility for the finance department.  Organised, flexible and accurate indiv 
required to manage team of eight.  New CA(SA). angelique@wexford.co.za

Do you want to migrate to Australia?  
Talk to a fellow Chartered Accountant (registered in  

South Africa and Australia) who is also a Registered Migration Agent

Why use Migrate2oz?
• We are registered with the Migration Agents 

Registration Authority which affords you 
protection and peace of mind as we comply 
with the MARA code of conduct and possess 
the necessary immigration law qualifications

• Our team is undoubtedly the most experienced 
and qualified in South Africa, including 
Chartered Accountants who have gone through 
the migration process themselves 

• We are permanently based in South Africa, 
which offers you the advantage of being 
close to your agent throughout the application 
process. We also have an office in Sydney

• As you do, we pride ourselves in maintaining 

the highest standards of integrity, offering 

honest professional advice

Our services
• All visa categories including Skilled, Business, 

Employer sponsored, Family and Partner visas

• Settlement advice 

• Advice on how to convert your CA(SA)

• Related financial advice

To begin your journey Downunder visit 
our website and complete our online 
assessment form 

www.migrate2oz.co.za or email your CV to 
info@migrate2oz.co.za  
Tel: 0861 46 86 69  |  0861 GO TO OZ
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Think Global Recruitment is a leading international 
recruitment consultancy that specialises in placing 
accountancy and finance professionals throughout the 
world. We are now recruiting for 2008/2009 starts and 
everyday place accountants in some of the most sought 
after destinations in the world.  

BUT DON’T TAKE OUR WORD FOR IT! This is what 
some recently placed professionals had to say about 
making the move with Think Global Recruitment:

“STOP dreaming about it and just go do it. It’s really 
worthwhile and very rewarding from both a personal and 
professional perspective. BEWARE though, it could be very 
addictive.” Freddie, USA

“If you want to improve your credentials and gain more 
valuable experience this is the way to go. Go out there and 
explore the world there is a lot of benefit to it.”
Mxolisi, Bermuda 

“Think Global Recruitment will search for jobs that will suit 
your personal needs and keep you updated throughout the 
process. I think it is a much less stressful process than if 
you were going to tackle it by yourself.” Anton, Ireland

“I wanted to improve my quality of life and yet still progress 
my career. Even in the short 18 months of being here in 
New Zealand, I feel that I have definitely achieved both of 
these goals.” Gina, New Zealand 

“My consultant was friendly and approachable and really 
took time to find out exactly what I was looking for. I didn't 
really know where to start looking for an overseas job and 
Think Global took the mystery out of it. They advised me of 
visa requirement in countries that I was interested in to 
ensure that I chose a location where my partner would be 
able to join me.” Emily, Cayman Islands

“It’s a wonderful experience that will make your 
professional life better and your personal life fuller. Come 
over, it will change your life.” Gerard, Russia

WORLDWIDEOPPORTUNITIES

“I was really surprised how easily and quickly I settled in.
I think the main reason it was so easy is that there are so 
many people that have made a similar move and are in the 
same boat.” Craig, Australia  

“Think Global lined up two interviews within a very short 
time – both companies offered positions.” 
Ann, Luxembourg 

If you are a qualified accountant, or about to qualify, then 
don’t hesitate to contact Think Global Recruitment to 
find out more about the opportunities we are currently 
working to fill in Financial Services, General Industry and 
Commerce and Professional Practice across the Globe!

For more information on your next career move visit:

www.thinkgr.com

or contact us at: 

T: +44 (0)131 240 1291
E: mail@thinkgr.com

BERMUDA    CARIBBEAN    AUSTRALIA    NEW ZEALAND    ASIA    MIDDLE EAST AFRICA    USA    CANADA    UNITED KINGDOM    CHANNEL ISLANDS    EUROPE

Where will you be
in 2009?

TGR suitcase ad.indd   1 12/8/08   17:17:28



CALL NOW FOR MORE INFORMATION
+27 11 315 9900

www.smithgarb.co.za
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Temporary & Permanent staff

Accounting & Financial
Recruitment Specialists

FINANCIAL MANAGER – SHARED SERVICES
MIDRAND R900K CTC

Leading National Manufacturing concern, listed on JSE has
opportunity for suitably qualified candidate. Position will be

responsible for three Business Units, which will include financial
management, reporting, forecasting and cycle planning, driving
performances and commercial management of the business.

Position requires a CA(SA) with minimum 5 years plus experience
in corporate governance, knowledge of hedging practices and
the ability to lead and coach others towards predictable results.

Call Juliet on (011)315 9900 or juliet@smithgarb.co.za

GROUP FINANCIAL MANAGER
R850K CTC

Large Manufacturing Group based in Bedfordview requires a
CA(SA) with 6 - 8 years Group Reporting experience. You will
be responsible for budgets, forecasting, consolidations and

reporting. Call Arlene on (011)315 9900 or
arlene@smithgarb.co.za

GROUP FINANCIAL MANAGER
R600K – R700K CTC PLUS BONUS

Move up a level and take on new challenges. Suit CA(SA) gearing
themselves towards that Financial Director role. Multinational
Head Office of Global Manufacturing concern, seeks an ambitious
person to join their team. Manage financial reporting, taxation,
oversee consolidation process, develop and enhance internal

controls. Motivate and manage the Accounting Department with
four staff reporting. Call Lynda on (011)315 9900 or

lynda@smithgarb.co.za

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER (GROUP)
MIDRAND R700K CTC NEG.

Listed IT Company offers phenomenal growth for a CA (preferably
from Big Four). Technical and practical skill required (KPA’s include
group audits/consolidations/tax and compliance/development
of procedures and policies as well as merger and acquisition

turnarounds). Call Dianne on (011)315 9900 or
dianne@smithgarb.co.za

CREDIT MANAGER
EAST RAND R500K – R600K CTC + BENS.

Incredible opportunity to be part of a large management team
within the FMCG industry. Must have Credit Management

qualification and relevant legal credit knowledge. Minimum 5
years supervisory experience. Strong FMCG exposure, the ability
to deal at board level and oversee a large team (5 direct reports/20
indirect). Handle very large book value R300 million. Affirmative

action SA citizens only. Call Dianne on (011)315 9900 or
dianne@smithgarb.co.za

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTANT
SANDTON R450K – R550K CTC

Head Office of national transport company has vacancies for
two candidates. These positions would ideally suit a CA(SA) with
± 1 year experience or B. Comm (Honours) with 3 - 5 experience
or B. Comm with 5 - 8 experience. Duties will include: preparation

and generation of management accounts, prepare year-end
accounting schedules, extensive involvement in the year-end
audit and preparation of group annual financial statements,

monitor and control the company fixed asset register and manage
and supervise staff. Career minded candidates please call Mandy

on (011) 315 9900 or mandisa@smithgarb.co.za

FINANCIAL/MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTANT
R450K – R500K CTC

Newly qualified CA's required urgently for various positions.
Ideally candidates would have completed the CA qualification
or completed Part 1 Board, writing Part II in November 2008.

Call Arlene for more information on (011) 315 9900 or
arlene@smithgarb.co.za

VARIOUS TEMPORARY POSITIONS AVAILABLE

For qualified:

• Management Accountants
• Financial Accountants
• Financial Managers
• Financial Directors etc.

DAV Acc SA Oct 2008 8/8/08 11:35 Page 1 
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Banking and Commerce OpportunitiesBanking and Commerce Opportunities

2IC to Head of Tax: Insurance

R750k – R850k: A progressive South African

financial services group needs a CA with 5-7

years Corporate Tax experience to manage the day-to-

day function of the Group Tax division.

kate@antonapps.com

Divisional Director: Insurance

R650k – R900k: Ideally you will have at least 5 years'

experience within either short- or long-term insurance

to manage a large team of financial professionals. AIC

preferable. sherwin@antonapps.com

Group Reporting Accountant: Industrials

R450k – R600k: Join a progressive business in a

group reporting capacity. Good technical

understanding and consolidation skills imperative.

phillippa@antonapps.com

Technical Accountant: Banking

R420k – R500k: A leading financial services

group requires a recently qualified CA with strong IFRS

skills to join their special projects team.

reshna@antonapps.com

Newly Qualified CAs: Commerce and FS

R400k – R500k: A number of outstanding

opportunities exist within both environments for newly

qualified CAs. If you have already finished articles or

are finishing in the coming months please send your

details. sherwin@antonapps.com

Head of Tax: Hong Kong

HK$ Neg: High-profile Trust company requires a Head

of Tax. This role will include the management of

corporate and personal tax and will be on an ex-pat

basis. janene@antonapps.com

Finance Manager: IT

R420k – R500k: A division of a listed entity requires

the skills of an experienced CA to run the financial

division of their IT operations. You must have financial

management experience. reshna@antonapps.com

Finance Director: Ghana

US$95k – US$130k: A mining exploration business

is looking for a strong FD to lead them in their new

ventures. Good rechnical and operational skills

essential. antonapps@antonapps.com

Operational Fin Manager: Insurance

R600k – R800k: Top 20 Listed Financial Services

Business. With your practical, hands-on knowledge of

funds-flow management and operational finance, you

will re-engineer finance processes and implement

new structures and control mechanisms to enhance

efficiency. kate@antonapps.com

Group Finance Director: Retail

R850k – R1.2million: Opportunity to lead a well-

known South African retail brand from a financial

perspective. You will require strong technical skills

IFRS, Statutory Reporting, Tax, Forex and excellent

global cash-management skills.

phillippa@antonapps.com

Business Manager: Investment Banking

R400k – R650k: Minimum BCom Honours with at

least 3 years' investment banking experience. You will

provide support to the Head of the division and see

through to completion various reports for management

and the board. janene@antonapps.com

Financial Controller: Kenya

US$80k – US$110k: An insurance company requires

the skills of a qualified accountant with prior financial

services experience to run the financial team in

Nairobi. antonapps@antonapps.com

073 788 7880 www.antonapps.com 0861 788 7880

Regulatory ReportingRegulatory Reporting

You will be responsible for:

•

•

• Managing the deadline-driven preparation, review and

submission of consolidated regulatory returns to SARB

for the local and international businesses

Analysing, reconciling and understanding significant

variances and their impact for financial statements

Supervising a team to ensure that the process for

submission is effective and efficient

You are likely to have a combination of the following skills:

•

•

• CA (alternatively a relevant finance or accounting

qualification)

Exposure to either Internal Control, Risk, Regulatory,

Compliance or Basel areas

Familiarity with Banking Regulations, Basel I & II, South

African Reserve Bank (SARB) requirements and capital

adequacy highly advantageous

As part of the Group function of a highly respected banking institution, the Regulatory Reporting team

ensures the effective submission of consolidated regulatory returns to SARB for the Group's worldwide

operations.

International SpecialistsRecruitment

R NegR Neg

Please contact Phillippa Miles on 0861 788 7880 or 073 788 7880 for a confidential discussion and email your curriculum vitae to

quoting reference “REG”.phillippa@antonapps.com www.antonapps.com

“Working Mums” Team – Opportunities“Working Mums” Team – Opportunities

Corporate Finance: Professional Services

R600k – R800k (pro rata): A Big Four firm working

on high-profile deals requires your commercial

acumen and interactive ability in order to process

transactions. kate@antonapps.com

Recently Qualified CA: Manufacturing

R400k – R450k (pro rata): Enthusiastic CA for a

Financial Accountant opportunity in which you will

optimise team performance, manage financial

planning and reporting. reshna@antonapps.com

TreasuryAccountant: InvestmentBanking

R480k – R600k (pro rata): You will have min 2 years

experience in a Treasury accounting team and ideally

with a knowledge of Credit Derivatives and Interest

Rate Derivatives. janene@antonapps.com
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Accpac ERP

To run a successful business today, you must have truly efficient, holistic financial
and business software. No bits here, bobs there and mismatched add-ons
later on!

Fortunately for all successful mid-size businesses there is the Accpac 360º Experience
- the solution that provides a cutting edge for every business need.

We start by fully understanding your business, implementing tailor-made solutions,
providing on-going professional support and continual software upgrades to ensure
we always enhance your company as it seamlessly evolves and grows...long
into the future.

To find out more on how your business can get a competitive advantage  from the
Accpac 360º Experience - please visit www.accpac.co.za or call
Sharon in Cape Town: 021 701 8442, Alan in Durban: 031 566 4510 or
Keith in Johannesburg: 011 304 2000.

Are you experienced?
Accpac 360 Experience. The complete business solution.

Enhancement

Implementation

Understanding

Support

Feedback


